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Lincoln is committed to helping our customers weld the world 

together, improving their processes and lowering their costs. Our 

commitment to customers has guided our Company throughout 

its 110-year history. To meet this commitment, Lincoln offers 

a worldwide presence with manufacturing plants, distribution 

centers and sales offices strategically located around the 

globe, all dedicated to innovative technology, total solutions 

and high quality. Our products play an important role in global 

10th Anniversary on the NASDAQ

In June 2005, Lincoln celebrated 10 years of listing on the NASDAQ 

market exchange. During 2005, LECO was one of the best performing 

stocks on the NASDAQ, as the value of Lincoln common shares 

increased 17.3 percent. Also during 2005, Lincoln was cited as an 

outstanding investment opportunity in Fortune, Barron’s, Kiplinger’s 

Personal Finance, Bloomberg and Smartmoney.com.

CONTENTS

manufacturing and infrastructure development. We work with 

all levels of industry to provide solutions ranging from high-tech 

automation, to heavy equipment fabricators, to light metal repair. 

Our extensive sales and distributor organization – recognized as 

the welding industry’s largest, most thoroughly trained customer 

support network – provides application-specific support to the $12 

billion global arc welding market. 
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SHAREHOLDERS’
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Dollars in millions
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2005 excludes net favorable tax benefits 
and gains related to the settlement of 
legal disputes, partially offset by charges 
relating to the sale of a business and 
European rationalization charges. 

2004 excludes European rationalization 
charges and CEO retirement costs. 

2003 excludes a charge relating to a 
Company rationalization program.

2002 excludes a charge relating to a 
Company rationalization program.

2001 excludes a net gain related to the sale 
of property partially offset by severance 
and redundancy costs in Europe.

* Diluted earnings per share as reported:

 2005 – $2.90  2004 – $1.94
 2003 – $1.31  2002 – $0.68
 2001 – $1.96
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Y e a r  e n d e d  d e c e m b e r  3 1
(Dollars in millions, except per share data)

2005 2004 2003

Net Sales  $1,601  $1,334  $1,041 

Net Income  122  81  55 

   Net Income excluding non-recurring items (A)  113 n  85 ^  56  • 

Basic Earnings Per Share  2.93  1.96  1.32 

   Basic Earnings Per Share excluding non-recurring items (A)  2.70 n  2.08 ^  1.35  • 

Diluted Earnings Per Share  2.90  1.94  1.31 

   Diluted Earnings Per Share excluding non-recurring items (A)  2.67 n  2.06 ^  1.34  • 

Cash Dividends Paid Per Share of Common Stock  0.72  0.67  0.64 

Working Capital 383 375 342

Current Ratio 2.3 2.4 2.6

Total Assets  $1,161  $1,059  $929 

Total Shareholders’ Equity  652  577  479 

Cash Provided by Operations  117  51  96 

Return on Average Shareholders’ Equity 19.9% 15.4% 12.2%

Return on Average Shareholders’ Equity excluding

   non-recurring items 18.4% n 16.3% ^ 12.5% • 

(A) Basic and diluted earnings per share excluding non-recurring items are presented as management believes this financial measure is important to 
investors to evaluate and compare the Company’s financial performance from period to period. Management uses this information in assessing 
and evaluating the Company’s underlying operating performance.

n 2005 excludes net favorable tax benefits of $11.7 ($0.28 per diluted share) related to a change in Ohio tax law, the resolution of prior years’ tax 
liabilities and the repatriation of foreign earnings, as well as $1.4 ($0.9 after-tax, or $0.01 per share) in gains related  to the settlement of legal 
disputes, partially offset by $3.7 ($3.0 after-tax, or $0.06 per share) of charges relating to the sale of a business and European rationalization 
charges.

^ 2004 excludes European rationalization charges of $2.4 ($2.1 after-tax, or $0.05 per diluted share) and retirement costs for the former CEO of $4.5 
($2.8 after-tax, or $0.07 per diluted share).

 • 2003 excludes rationalization charges of $1.7 ($1.3 after-tax, or $0.03 per diluted share). 
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shareholders:
TO OUR

Thanks to the hard work and commitment of our employees, strong  

worldwide demand for our products, the strength of our global 

organization, and the soundness of our strategies, 2005 was a great year 

for Lincoln Electric. 

 Our success reflects the strength of our vision, which is to be 

the undisputed leader in the global arc welding market by supplying 

the highest-quality welding, brazing and cutting products. We focus 

on being a low-cost producer in the market, providing valuable 

applications expertise and solutions to our customers, and developing 

innovative technology that provides value-added products and services. 

We also strive for continuous improvement in the five key areas of people 

development, customer service, operational efficiency, global expansion, 

and innovation.

John M. Stropki Chairman, President and

Chief Executive Officer

CHAIRmAN’S LETTER



 

 For the year, our net income grew 52 percent to a record 

$122.3 million, or $2.90 per diluted share, from $80.6 million, 

or $1.94 per diluted share, a year ago. We also achieved record 

net sales of $1.60 billion in 2005, an increase of 20 percent from 

the previous record of $1.33 billion in 2004. Sales improved 

significantly in all of our key market regions, with 41 percent of 

sales outside of North America. 

 
North American Demand Rises

 The stronger manufacturing climate produced increased  

demand in North America. Many of our customers are expanding 

to take advantage of opportunities in the marketplace. Worldwide 

growth in demand also affected our North American operations, 

as our exports to Latin America, Europe and Asia increased by 67  

percent over the past five years.

 During the latter half of 2005, hurricane-related repair 

activity spurred demand to even higher levels in what was already a 

strong year. It is gratifying to know that Lincoln products will play 

a key role in helping our customers rebuild the devastated areas. 

This is just one way we are helping to “Weld the World Together.”

 In addition to the stronger economy, other trends 

contributed to our sales growth. Our automation business 

continues to grow as more customers automate their welding 

operations to improve productivity, reduce costs and enhance 

quality. Lincoln’s advanced robotic welding systems and 

complementary products are designed to serve this growing 

market. Our retail and rental businesses also experienced growth, 

reflecting the increasing popularity of our products with the do-

it-yourself market segment and customers who prefer to rent 

rather than own equipment. 

 Our acquisition of J.W. Harris Co., Inc., a global leader 

in brazing and soldering alloys, enhances the value we bring to 

customers by broadening our product line and strengthening 

our relationships with users and distributors. This complementary 

line of products will open new global opportunities for us and 

contributed $75.5 million in sales in 2005.

 
Global Progress Continues

 To meet the growing demand and better serve our 

customers all over the world, we continue to make progress with our 

global expansion strategy. In 2005, we gained share in emerging 

markets where we are focusing on a value-added approach rather 

than a commodity approach to selling our products.

 In China, we increased our equity ownership of our joint 

ventures, opened the first of several new sales branches in Guangzhou 

and added consumable manufacturing capacity. We also completed 

the final stages of bringing our welding machine operation online 

in Shanghai, with production starting in February 2006.

 In Latin America, we have grown aggressively and  

gained important market share by serving our customers’ needs. 

We made strategic investments in Colombia and Brazil, and we  

continued with our internal expansion programs in Brazil and 

Torreon, Mexico. 

 Some of our fastest-growing markets are in Eastern 

Europe, the Middle East and Russia. To help us serve these markets 

in 2006, we will open a new plant in Turkey with our joint venture 

partner there and are adding two new plants in Poland, also expected 

to open in 2006.

 One of our biggest marketing and sales successes in 

2005 was our exhibit at the global welding trade show in Essen, 

Germany, which is held once every four years. Coinciding with the 

trade show, we introduced more than a dozen new products for the 

European and export market, which captured much interest. The 

popularity of our exhibit and new products demonstrates the solid 

progress we have made in Europe and around the world and our 

excellent prospects for future growth.
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Commitment to Our Shareholders and 
Communities

 As 2005 marked the 10th anniversary of Lincoln Electric 

stock trading on the NASDAQ exchange, it is fitting to note the 

strides our stock has made in its performance over the past several 

years. From December 2000 to December 2005, Lincoln’s stock 

price more than doubled, while the Dow Jones, S&P 500 and 

NASDAQ indexes all were essentially flat or lower. In the past 

year, both Forbes and Fortune magazines have featured Lincoln 

among the best stocks to buy.

 Also, during the past two years, our institutional 

ownership has increased from 49 percent to approximately 63 

percent, indicating the strong confidence these investors have in 

our current results, long-term strategy, and growth prospects.

 As part of our commitment to shareholders, we are 

dedicated to having strong, independent voices on our Board of 

Directors. One of those directors, Paul E. Lego, retired in 2005 

after 12 years of distinguished service on our Board. We thank 

Paul for his contributions during this exciting period of growth 

for our Company, and we wish him well in his future endeavors. 

 While we are proud of our stock performance, 

our community contributions and achievements to improve 

workplace and environmental safety also give us much pride. 

For example, our long-standing corporate commitment to the 

environment has resulted in all of our U.S. facilities achieving 

ISO 14001 environmental standards. Lincoln is the first in our 

industry to achieve this goal, and we are now working to spread 

those standards to our operations around the world.

 During the year, Lincoln received the Pillar Award for 

outstanding community service in Northeast Ohio, honoring 

our long-time support of scores of area organizations that work 

to improve the quality of life in the communities where we live 

and work. Lincoln also was named one of the Cleveland area’s 50 

healthiest organizations by HealthSpace Cleveland.

Lincoln Electric has identified five key areas of focus that will 

enable the Company to achieve continued excellence throughout 

its global organization. Every Lincoln employee has a role to play 

in the Company’s improvement in each area. They are:

1  PEOPLE   The biggest factor in Lincoln’s success is its 

people. To recruit, develop and reward the best people, the 

Company is undertaking a number of initiatives to improve in the 

areas of resource planning, hiring practices, training programs, 

evaluation and incentives, employee development programs, and 

employee communications.

2  CUSTOmER SERVICE   Providing best-in-class 

customer service is the key to profitability and growth. Lincoln’s 

customer service initiatives include improving commercial 

infrastructures and systems; ensuring that appropriate technical 

expertise is delivered to customers; providing timely, accurate 

and relevant metrics; making quality improvements; enhancing 

distributor relationships; generating greater customer feedback; 

and applying Six Sigma principles to customer processes.

3  OPERATIONAL EffICIENCY   To enhance efficiency, 

the Company will continuously look for ways to improve 

productivity, infrastructure, quality and safety, and to reduce costs. 

Operational initiatives include reducing the raw material cost 

base, strengthening the supply chain, manufacturing in lower-cost 

areas, investing in facility and equipment upgrades, rationalizing 

production, and maintaining our excellent environmental and 

safety record.

4  ExPANSION  Lincoln will take advantage of its many 

opportunities to grow by focusing on increasing market share, 

leveraging its prior investments, and expanding geographically. 

Expansion initiatives include growing the aluminum consumables, 

flux cored wire, specialty consumables, automation, retail and 

rental businesses; geographic growth in Europe, Asia and Latin 

America; expansion into complementary businesses; and growth 

in high-potential product lines.

5  INNOVATION   To remain a recognized technology leader 

in the industry, Lincoln must stay at the leading edge of advance-

ments in welding technology. Areas of greatest potential include 

welding guns, cables and accessories; plasma products; cored wire 

advancements; nickel alloy consumables; emerging welding tech-

nologies; and machine and consumable product improvements. 

five Components for 

Continued Excellence

  



 When hurricanes devastated much of the southeastern 

United States, many of us had family members or friends who were 

affected. First, we were greatly relieved that our employees and their 

families in Louisiana, Mississippi and Alabama were accounted 

for and safe. Then, we turned to supporting the relief effort by 

assisting our industrial and retail customers with their supply 

needs for generators and other power sources to serve the affected 

communities. As a corporation, we made a monetary contribution 

to the American Red Cross and donated engine-driven welder 

generators to the Future Farmers of America for use as suppliers of 

emergency power.

 
Further Growth Expected in 2006 

 In 2006, we expect the strengthening U.S. industrial 

environment to provide steady demand, while oil and gas projects will 

continue to lead demand growth worldwide.

 For the long term, our sustained growth will be tied to our 

continuous improvement in the five components of excellence we 

discussed on page 4. 

 Though the outlook is promising, many challenges remain. 

The global welding industry is highly competitive, based on price, 

brand preference, product quality and a full-service approach to 

satisfying customer needs. To maintain our leadership position and 

continue providing top value to our customers and shareholders, 

we must ensure our competitive advantage by improving our 

management of costs and business processes. We will continue to 

rationalize production at our plants worldwide to make sure we are 

serving customers at maximum efficiency.

 We will also continue to explore new investments to 

broaden our range of locally made products and expand our 

geographical coverage in the important China market. In addition, 

we are making a commitment to add manufacturing capacity in 

India in the near future.

Lincoln Electric
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 Over the long term, our organic growth in the United 

States and Western Europe will be tied to the strength of the 

economies in those markets. We anticipate more rapid growth in 

the emerging markets of Eastern Europe, Latin America and Asia-

Pacific. As a result, we expect these emerging markets to account for 

a larger share of our sales over time.

 Our pursuit of growth by acquisition will remain a key 

part of our strategy. We will be looking for opportunities to grow 

either by geographic expansion, complementary product lines, or 

additional market share.

  Product development is one of Lincoln’s primary 

differentiators in the marketplace, and we will continue to invest 

aggressively in research and development. We will strive to identify 

new products, markets and geographic opportunities to gain new 

customers and serve our existing customers better, while generating 

greater profitability and investment return.

 For more than 110 years, Lincoln Electric has demon-

strated that our system works. Our future success will be a direct 

result of the continued hard work, dedication and talents of our 

people, our commitment to customers, and our dedication to in-

creasing shareholder value.

 To all of our employees, customers and shareholders, 

I thank you for your continued support and shared belief in the 

values of integrity, fair-dealing and customer focus that Lincoln has 

represented since it was founded.

Sincerely,

John M. Stropki

Chairman, President and 

Chief Executive Officer

  



Ongoing strength in the global oil and gas sector 

is generating increased demand for our welding 

products. Lincoln’s products play a vital role 

worldwide in projects related to the production, 

transportation and storage of various forms of 

energy, such as the liquid natural gas tanks being 

transported on this ship.

Lincoln electric is the leading supplier to the $12 billion 

global arc welding market and is recognized worldwide for 

its innovative technology, high-quality products and creative 

business model. The company is the market leader in north 

america and among the top three suppliers in all of its major 

geographic markets.

  



To maintain its worldwide leadership position, Lincoln 

pursues an ongoing strategy of international growth by 

focusing on customers’ needs, taking a value-added solutions 

approach, developing new products, expanding through strategic  

acquisitions, improving operations, and reducing costs. 

Following is a summary of the trends in each major global 

region and how Lincoln is responding to those trends.

NORTH AmERICA

As global competition continues to challenge U.S. industry, 

Lincoln Electric’s cost-effective products and welding expertise 

help its manufacturing customers improve their productivity, 

quality and competitiveness. Strength in the construction and 

energy sectors has also boosted demand for Lincoln’s products. 

The Company has developed strong relationships with equipment 

rental fleet organizations serving special segments of the industrial 

sector and has established the leading supplier role in support of 

large retail chains to serve the welding needs of the growing do-

it-yourself market.

Lincoln is the only company that offers a full line of 

welding equipment, consumables and automation technology 

for a complete solution to all of its customers’ welding needs. In 

the United States and Canada especially – but also to a growing 

extent around the world – customers are looking to automate their 

welding processes to increase productivity, improve quality, offset 

a shortage of welding operators, resolve environmental and safety 

issues, and compete better in the global markets.

Lincoln is the world leader in automation technology for 

the welding industry and has invested aggressively in research 

and development to meet this growing need. For example, its 

NEXTWELD™ technology reduces costs and improves quality, 

control and productivity in the welding process by allowing either 

on-site or remote computer monitoring and simplifying upgrades 

of software.

Lincoln Electric
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mAP LEGEND

GLobAL HEADQuARTERS

REGIoNAL HEADQuARTERS

MANufACTuRING fACILITIES

REGIoNAL offICES / 
DISTRIbuTIoN CENTERS

  



RIGHT Growth in energy transportation and 

other types of global commerce has generated 

increased activity in shipbuilding, especially in the 

Asia-Pacific and Eastern European regions. Today’s 

larger ocean-going tankers require a great amount 

of welding.

ABOVE LEfT To serve the growing 

economies of China and other areas of the 

Asia-Pacific, Lincoln Electric has expanded 

its manufacturing capacity in the region to 

produce more locally made products including 

welding equipment. 

LEfT  In addition to expanding manufactur-

ing in the China market, Lincoln is also exploring 

technology relationships with China’s leading 

industrial companies. Lincoln Electric CEO 

John Stropki and our Asia Pacific management 

team are pictured with Su Shifeng, President of 

China Petroleum Pipeline Bureau, and his staff. 

The two companies held important discussions 

in 2005 regarding a high-level joint develop-

ment of new technology to meet 21st century 

demands of the oil and gas pipeline industry.



Among major North America-based suppliers in the welding 

industry, Lincoln far surpasses its competitors in its investment  

and development of new products and technology innovation. 

Products developed within the past five years accounted for over 

50 percent of the Company’s equipment sales in the United States. 

In related markets, Lincoln’s entry into the expanding 

aluminum weld wire market has resulted in steady growth. It is 

also increasing its share in other high-potential markets such as 

welding guns, torches and accessories; plasma machines; and cored 

wire products. The recent acquisition of J.W. Harris Co. Inc., a 

producer of brazing and soldering alloys, has further expanded 

Lincoln’s product offerings.

ASIA-PACIfIC

The Asia-Pacific region is the fastest-growing market in 

the welding industry. Throughout the region, infrastructure 

projects, improving economies, and the strength of the energy 

and shipbuilding sectors are combining to generate substantial 

demand for our welding products.

 Leading the way in this region is China, with its growing 

industrial base, and increasing consumption driven by the 

demand for improved infrastructure. To serve this demand, 

Lincoln is expanding its manufacturing capabilities and sales 

operations to offer a full range of product in China. In addition 

to its new manufacturing capacity for welding equipment and 

consumables in Shanghai, the Company continues to explore 

further opportunities for expansion to broaden its range of locally 

made products.

Infrastructure improvements and the strength of the oil 

and gas sectors are generating significant growth in India as well. 

While Lincoln Electric currently serves this growing market via 

exports from other locations, it expects to add manufacturing 

capacity in India in the near future.

The Company also has reinvested in its Australian operations 

to serve the region better and improve profitability. A significant 

portion of the products Lincoln manufactures in Australia are 

exported to Southeast Asia and, to a lesser extent, to the Middle 

East. Growth in the mining regions of Australia increased demand 

for engine-driven welders in 2005.

Elsewhere in the region, demand has been strong in South 

Korea and Japan, reflecting the growth of liquid natural gas and 

shipbuilding projects. The Company also is expanding capacity at 

its Indonesia facility to meet the increased demand for electrodes 

in the region.

The acquisition of J.W. Harris Co., Inc., a 

global leader in brazing and soldering alloy 

products, has broadened Lincoln’s offerings 

with a complementary line of products to 

better serve our customers.

Lincoln Electric
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LATIN AmERICA

Strength in the energy sector and increased global demand 

for commodities have generated healthy industrial growth and 

domestic consumption for many economies in Latin America. 

Oil-related investments were particularly strong in 2005, and 

countries such as Mexico and Brazil have leveraged their relatively 

low cost bases to grow their exports in a variety of industries which 

directly impact our opportunities.

In recent years, Lincoln has expanded and strengthened 

its infrastructure by improving its cost position and increasing 

its manufacturing capabilities in Mexico, Venezuela and Brazil. 

It is currently expanding and upgrading its new operations in 

Colombia as well. As a result, the Company has grown its market 

share in these and other countries throughout the region. 

Looking forward, strong commodity prices are expected 

to continue driving significant investment in infrastructure 

throughout Latin America, leading to broad-based industry 

growth, increased exports and stronger consumption. Lincoln 

Electric is well-positioned to serve this growing region and will 

continue to expand in line with market growth.

EUROPE, RUSSIA, mIDDLE EAST, AfRICA

Demand for welding products in Eastern Europe has grown 

significantly, due largely to the transfer of heavy industry and 

shipbuilding from Western Europe to this lower-cost region. In 

recent years, Lincoln has increased its capacity to serve customers 

throughout Eastern Europe with the expansion of its operations 

in Poland and Turkey, and the Company is positioned well for 

future growth. In addition, increasing investment in oil and gas 

production in Russia is leading to new opportunities for Lincoln. 

The Company continues to expand its commercial infrastructure 

and presence in Russia. 

Although the markets for Lincoln’s products are growing 

more rapidly in Eastern Europe and Russia, the Company has 

strong product portfolios and opportunities to grow market share 

in Western Europe as well. Lincoln has improved its operations 

by lowering costs, while introducing a variety of new products 

to serve customers more effectively and gain market share in the 

more established markets of Western Europe. It is also growing its 

retail, rental and automation businesses in Europe.

Finally, increasing pipe mill production and pipeline projects 

are driving demand for consumables and engine-driven welders 

in the Middle East and Africa. Pipe mill and pipeline business 

continues to be robust in these areas, based on the increased 

demand and higher pricing for oil and gas commodities. To serve 

this market, Lincoln is expanding its regional office in Dubai, as 

well as its overall distribution network throughout this region.

RIGHT In September 2005, Lincoln Electric exhibited at the 

Essen Welding Show in Germany, which is held every four years. The 

exposition drew approximately 80,000 people from all over the world 

with over 20,000 visiting Lincoln Electric’s booth featuring an array of 

new products, welding workshops and live welding demonstrations.

 



LEfT Lincoln’s automation business serves a growing 

segment of customers that are looking to improve 

productivity, reduce costs and enhance quality by 

automating their welding processes.

BELOW Industrial growth in Latin America has led 

to increased demand for welding products. To better serve 

customers in this region and reduce costs, Lincoln has 

expanded its manufacturing capabilities throughout Latin 

America, including this new plant in Torreon, Mexico.

Lincoln Electric
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CORPORATE INfORmATIONBOARD Of DIRECTORS COmPANY OffICERS AND

ExECUTIVE mANAGEmENT

Harold L. Adams °2002
Lead Director
Chairman Emeritus and Former Chairman, 
President and Chief Executive Officer of
RTKL Associates  Inc.

Ranko Cucuz °2001
Former Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer of
Hayes Lemmerz International, Inc. 

David H. Gunning °1987
Vice Chairman of Cleveland-Cliffs Inc 

Robert J. Knoll °2003
Former Partner, Deloitte & Touche LLP 

G. Russell Lincoln °1989
President of N.A.S.T. Inc.

Kathryn Jo Lincoln °1995
Chairman of the Lincoln Institute
of Land Policy and President
of the Lincoln Foundation, Inc.  

Hellene S. Runtagh °2001
Former President and Chief Executive Officer
of Berwind Group  

John M. Stropki °1998
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer
of the Company

George H. Walls, Jr. °2003
Former Chief Deputy Auditor,
State of North Carolina

° Year elected as a Director

George D. Blankenship *1985 • ^ 
Senior Vice President, Global Engineering and 
U.S. Operations

Gabriel Bruno *1995 
Vice President, Corporate Controller

Joseph G. Doria *1972
Vice President
President, Lincoln Electric Canada  

Gretchen A. Farrell *1997 • ^ 
Vice President, Human Resources 

Ralph C. Fernandez *1995
Vice President 
President, Lincoln Electric Latin America 

Thomas A. Flohn *1983
Vice President
President, Lincoln Electric Asia Pacific 

Vinod Kapoor *2000
Vice President, Global Operations Development

Michele R. Kuhrt *1997 
Vice President, Corporate Tax 

David M. LeBlanc *1986
Vice President
President, Lincoln Electric Europe

David J. Nangle *1979 
Vice President; Group President of Brazing,
Cutting and Retail Subsidiaries

Ronald A. Nelson *1972
Vice President, Machine Division 

Vincent K. Petrella *1995 • ^ 
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
and Treasurer 

James E. Schilling *1998 • ^ 
Senior Vice President, Corporate Development 

Richard J. Seif *1971 
Senior Vice President, Sales and Marketing and 
Senior Vice President for the Middle East and 
Africa (MEA)

John M. Stropki *1972 • ^ 
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer 

Frederick G. Stueber *1995 • ^ 
Senior Vice President, General Counsel
and Secretary

• Officer, Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc.
^ Member, Management Committee
* Year joined the Company

Additional copies of Lincoln Electric’s 

2005 Annual Report and Form 10-K may 

be obtained by contacting Corporate 

Relations at (216) 383-4893, sending 

a fax to (216) 383-8220 or visiting our 

Web site: www.lincolnelectric.com. This 

Annual Report may also be obtained by 

calling 1-888-400-7789.

Inquiries about dividends, shareholder 

records, share transfers, changes in 

ownership and address changes should 

be directed to the Transfer Agent and 

Registrar:

National City Bank
Dept. 5352
Corporate Trust Operations
P.O. Box 92301
Cleveland, Ohio 44197-1200
Attn: Shareholder Services
(800) 622-6757

The Annual Meeting of Lincoln Electric 

Shareholders is scheduled to be held on 

Friday, April 28, 2006, at 10:00 a.m., at 

Marriott Cleveland East, 26300 Harvard 

Road, Warrensville Heights, Ohio 44122. 

The Company’s Common Shares are 

traded on the NASDAQ Stock Market 

under the stock symbol “LECO.” The 

number of record holders of Common 

Shares at December 31, 2005, was 2,022.

For additional Company information, 

contact:

Corporate Relations
Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc.
22801 St. Clair Avenue
Cleveland, Ohio 44117-1199 USA
Phone: (216) 383-4893
Fax: (216) 383-8220
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Global and North 
American Headquarters
Cleveland, Ohio

Santa Fe Springs, California
Gas Apparatus

Mississauga, Canada
Consumables

Toronto, Canada
Equipment & Consumables

Gainesville, Georgia
Gas Apparatus

Cleveland, Ohio
Equipment & Consumables

Mason, Ohio
Consumables

Cranston, Rhode Island
Consumables

 
Latin American 
Headquarters
Miami, Florida

Sao Paulo, Brazil
Consumables

Bogota, Colombia
Consumables

Culiacon, Mexico
Consumables & Accessories

Mexico City, Mexico
Equipment & Consumables

Torreon, Mexico
Equipment & Consumables

Maracay, Venezuela
Consumables

Lincoln Electric Operates in 19 Countries 

on Five Continents

European Headquarters 
Barcelona, Spain

Sheffield, England
Consumables

Grand-Quevilly, France
Consumables

Essen, Germany
Pipemill Welding Systems

Rathnew, Ireland
Gas Apparatus

Arezzo, Italy
Consumables

Bologna, Italy
Gas Apparatus

Genoa, Italy
Equipment

Nijmegen, Netherlands
Consumables

Bielawa, Poland
Equipment

Barcelona, Spain
Consumables

Istanbul, Turkey
Consumables

 
Asia Pacific Headquarters
Shanghai, China

Sydney, Australia
Equipment & Consumables

Jiangyin, China
Consumables

Jinzhou, China
Consumables

Nanjing, China
Consumables

Shanghai, China
Equipment & Consumables

Cikarang, Indonesia
Consumables

Jining, Inner Mongolia
Consumables

Tainan, Taiwan
Consumables
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PART I

Item 1. Business

General

As used in Item 1 of this report, the term ""Company,'' except as otherwise indicated by the context, means
Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc., the publicly-held parent of The Lincoln Electric Company, and other Lincoln
Electric Holdings, Inc. subsidiaries. The Lincoln Electric Company began operations in 1895 and was
incorporated under the laws of the State of Ohio in 1906. During 1998, The Lincoln Electric Company
reorganized into a holding company structure and Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. became the publicly-held
parent of Lincoln Electric subsidiaries worldwide, including The Lincoln Electric Company.

The Company is a full-line manufacturer and reseller of welding and cutting products. Welding products
include arc welding power sources, wire feeding systems, robotic welding packages, fume extraction
equipment, consumable electrodes and Öuxes. The Company's welding product oÅering also includes
regulators and torches used in oxy-fuel welding and cutting. With the recent acquisition of J.W. Harris, the
Company has a leading global position in the brazing and soldering alloys market.

The arc welding power sources and wire feeding systems manufactured by the Company range in technology
from basic units used for light manufacturing and maintenance to highly sophisticated robotic machine
applications for high production welding and fabrication. Three primary types of arc welding electrodes are
produced: (1) coated manual or stick electrodes, (2) solid electrodes produced in coil reel or drum forms for
continuous feeding in mechanized welding, and (3) cored electrodes produced in coil form for continuous
feeding in mechanized welding.

The Company has wholly-owned subsidiaries or joint venture manufacturing facilities located in the United
States, Australia, Brazil, Canada, Colombia, England, France, Germany, Indonesia, Ireland, Italy, Mexico,
the Netherlands, People's Republic of China, Poland, Spain, Taiwan, Turkey and Venezuela. The Company
manages its operations by geographic location and has three reportable segments: North America, Europe and
all Other Countries. The Other Countries segment includes results of operations for the Company's businesses
in Argentina, Australia, Brazil, Colombia, Indonesia, Mexico, People's Republic of China, Taiwan and
Venezuela. See Note J to the consolidated Ñnancial statements with respect to segment and geographic area
information. Nearly all of the above facilities are ISO 9001 certiÑed.

Customers

The Company's products are sold in both domestic and international markets. In North America, products are
sold principally through industrial distributors, retailers and also directly to users of welding products. Outside
of North America, the Company has an international sales organization comprised of Company employees
and agents who sell products from the Company's various manufacturing sites to distributors, agents, dealers
and product users.

The Company's major end user markets include:

‚ general metal fabrication,

‚ infrastructure including oil and gas pipelines and platforms, buildings, bridges and power generation,

‚ transportation and defense industries (automotive/trucks, rail, ships and aerospace),

‚ equipment manufacturers in construction, farming and mining,

‚ retail resellers, and

‚ rental market.

The Company is not dependent on a single customer or a few customers. The loss of any one customer would
not have a material adverse eÅect on its business. The Company's business is not seasonal.
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Competition

Conditions in the arc welding and cutting industry are highly competitive. The Company believes it is the
world's largest manufacturer of consumables and equipment in a Ñeld of three or four major competitors and
numerous smaller competitors. The Company continues to pursue appropriate strategies to heighten its
competitiveness in domestic and international markets, which includes positioning low cost manufacturing
facilities in most geographical markets. Competition in the arc welding and cutting industry is on the basis of
brand preference, product quality, price and performance, warranty, delivery, service and technical support.
The Company believes its performance against these factors has contributed to the Company's position as the
leader in the industry.

Virtually all of the Company's products may be classiÑed as standard commercial articles and are
manufactured for stock. The Company believes it has a competitive advantage in the marketplace because of
its highly trained technical sales force and the support of its welding research and development staÅ, which
allow it to assist the consumers of its products in optimizing their welding applications. The Company utilizes
this technical expertise to present its Guaranteed Cost Reduction Program to end users through which the
Company guarantees that the user will achieve cost savings in its manufacturing process when it utilizes the
Company's products. This allows the Company to introduce its products to new users and to establish and
maintain close relationships with its customers. This close relationship between the technical sales force and
the customers, together with its supportive relationship with its distributors, who are particularly interested in
handling the broad range of the Company's products, is an important element of the Company's market
success and a valuable asset of the Company.

Raw Materials

The principal raw materials essential to the Company's business are various chemicals, electronics, steel,
engines, brass, copper and aluminum alloys, all of which are normally available for purchase in the open
market.

Patents and Trademarks

The Company holds many valuable patents, primarily in arc welding, and has increased the application process
as research and development has progressed in both the United States and major international jurisdictions.
The Company believes its trademarks are an important asset, and aggressively pursues brand management.

Environmental Regulations

The Company's facilities are subject to environmental regulations. To date, compliance with these environ-
mental regulations has not had a material eÅect on the Company's earnings. The Company is ISO 14001
certiÑed at its most signiÑcant manufacturing facilities in the United States and is working to gain certiÑcation
at its remaining United States facilities, as well as its major facilities in Canada, Mexico and Europe.

International Operations

The Company conducts a signiÑcant amount of its business and has a number of operating facilities in
countries outside the United States. As a result, the Company is subject to business risks inherent to
non-U.S. activities, including political uncertainty, import and export limitations, exchange controls and
currency Öuctuations. The Company believes risks related to its foreign operations are mitigated due to the
political and economic stability of the countries in which its largest foreign operations are located.

Research and Development

Research activities, which the Company believes provide a competitive advantage, relate to the development
of new products and the improvement of existing products. Research activities are Company-sponsored. Refer
to Note A to the consolidated Ñnancial statements with respect to total costs of research and development.
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Employees

The number of persons employed by the Company worldwide at December 31, 2005 was 7,485. See Item 10 of
Part III for information regarding the Company's executive oÇcers.

Website Access

The Company's internet address is www.lincolnelectric.com. The Company makes available free of charge on
its website at www.lincolnelectric.com its annual, quarterly and current reports, as soon as reasonably
practicable after the Company electronically Ñles such material with, or furnishes it to the SEC. The
Company also posts its Code of Corporate Conduct and Ethics on its website. However, the information found
on the Company's website is not part of this or any other report.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

From time to time, information we provide, statements by our employees or information included in our Ñlings
with the Securities and Exchange Commission may contain forward-looking statements that are not historical
facts. Those statements are ""forward-looking'' within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform
Act of 1995. Forward-looking statements, and our future performance, operating results, Ñnancial position and
liquidity, are subject to a variety of factors that could materially aÅect results, including those described below.
Any forward-looking statements made in this report or otherwise speak only as of the date of the statement,
and, except as required by law, we undertake no obligation to update those statements. Comparisons of results
for current and any prior periods are not intended to express any future trends or indications of future
performance, unless expressed as such, and should only be viewed as historical data.

You should carefully consider each of the risks and uncertainties we describe below and all of the other
information in this report. The risks and uncertainties we describe below are not the only ones we face.
Additional risks and uncertainties of which we are currently unaware or that we currently believe to be
immaterial may also adversely aÅect our business.

If energy costs or the prices of our raw materials increase, our operating expenses could increase
signiÑcantly.

In the normal course of business, we are exposed to market risk and price Öuctuations related to the purchase
of energy and commodities used in the manufacture of our products (primarily steel, brass, copper and
aluminum alloys). The availability and prices for raw materials are subject to volatility and are inÖuenced by
worldwide economic conditions, speculative action, world supply and demand balances, inventory levels,
availability of substitute materials, currency exchange rates, our competitors' production costs, anticipated or
perceived shortages and other factors. For example, since 2003, the price of the type of steel used to
manufacture our products has increased signiÑcantly and has been subject to periodic shortages due to global
economic factors, including increased demand for construction materials in developing nations such as China
and India. Since 2003, we have also experienced substantial inÖation in prices for other raw materials,
including metals and chemicals. In addition, we have experienced an increase in energy costs, and energy costs
could continue to rise, which would result in higher transportation, freight and other operating costs. Our
future operating expenses and margins will be dependent on our ability to manage the impact of cost increases.
Our results of operations may be harmed by shortages of supply and by increases in prices to the extent those
increases can not be passed on to customers.

We are a co-defendant in litigation alleging manganese induced illness and litigation alleging asbestos
induced illness. Liabilities relating to such litigation could reduce our proÑtability and impair our
Ñnancial condition.

At December 31, 2005, we were a co-defendant in cases alleging manganese induced illness involving claims
by approximately 8,724 plaintiÅs and a co-defendant in cases alleging asbestos induced illness involving claims
by approximately 34,667 plaintiÅs. In each instance, we are one of a large number of defendants. In the
manganese cases, the claimants allege that exposure to manganese contained in welding consumables caused
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the plaintiÅ to develop adverse neurological conditions, including a condition known as manganism. In the
asbestos cases, the claimants allege that exposure to asbestos contained in welding consumables caused the
plaintiÅs to develop adverse pulmonary diseases, including mesothelioma and other lung cancers.

Since January 1, 1995, we have been a co-defendant in manganese cases that have been resolved as follows:
5,704 of those claims were dismissed, 8 were tried to defense verdicts in favor of us, 2 were tried to hung juries,
1 of which resulted in a plaintiÅ's verdict upon retrial, and one of which resulted in a defense verdict and 12
were settled for immaterial amounts. Since January 1, 1995, we have been a co-defendant in asbestos cases
that have been resolved as follows: 19,443 of those claims were dismissed, 9 were tried to defense verdicts, 4
were tried to plaintiÅ verdicts and 304 were decided in favor of us following summary judgment motions.

Defense costs have been increasing. The long-term impact of the manganese and asbestos loss contingencies,
in each case in the aggregate, on operating cash Öows and capital markets is diÇcult to access, particularly
since claims are in many diÅerent stages of development and we beneÑt signiÑcantly from cost-sharing with
co-defendants and insurance carriers. While we intend to contest these lawsuits vigorously, and have
applicable insurance relating to these claims, there are several risks and uncertainties that may aÅect our
liability for personal claims relating to exposure to manganese and asbestos, including the possibility that cost
sharing dissipates for some currently unforeseen reason or that our trial experience changes overall.

Manganese is an essential element of steel and cannot be eliminated from welding consumables. Asbestos use
in welding consumables in the U.S. ceased in 1981.

We may incur material losses and costs as a result of product liability claims that may be brought
against us.

Our products are used in a variety of applications, including infrastructure projects such as oil and gas
pipelines and platforms, buildings, bridges and power generation facilities, the manufacture of transportation
and heavy equipment or machinery, and various other construction projects. We face risk of exposure to
product liability claims in the event that accidents or failures on these projects result, or are alleged to result,
in bodily injury or property damage. Further, our welding products are designed for use in speciÑc applications,
and if a product is used inappropriately, personal injury or property damage may result. For example, in the
period between 1994 and 2000, we were a defendant or co-defendant in 21 lawsuits Ñled by building owners or
insurers in Los Angeles County, California. The plaintiÅs in those cases alleged that certain buildings aÅected
by the 1994 Northridge earthquake sustained property damage in part because a particular electrode used in
the construction of those buildings was unsuitable for that use. In the Northridge cases, one case was tried to a
defense verdict in favor of us, 12 were voluntarily dismissed, 7 were settled and we received summary
judgment in our favor in another.

The occurrence of defects in or failures of our products, or the misuse of our products in speciÑc applications,
could cause termination of customer contracts, increased costs and losses to us, our customers and other end
users. We cannot be assured that we will not experience any material product liability losses in the future or
that we will not incur signiÑcant costs to defend those claims. Further, we cannot be assured that our product
liability insurance coverage will be adequate for any liabilities that we may ultimately incur or that it will
continue to be available on terms acceptable to us.

The cyclicality and maturity of the United States arc welding and cutting industry may adversely aÅect
our performance.

The United States arc welding and cutting industry is a mature industry that is cyclical in nature. The growth
of the domestic arc welding and cutting industry has been and continues to be constrained by factors such as
the increased cost of steel and increased oÅshore production of fabricated steel structures. Overall demand for
arc welding and cutting products is largely determined by the level of capital spending in manufacturing and
other industrial sectors, and the welding industry has historically experienced contraction during periods of
slowing industrial activity. If economic, business and industry conditions deteriorate, capital spending in those
sectors may be substantially decreased, which could reduce demand for our products, our revenues and our
results of operations.
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We may not be able to complete our acquisition strategy or successfully integrate acquired businesses.

Part of our business strategy is to pursue targeted business acquisition opportunities, including foreign
investment opportunities. We cannot be certain that we will be successful in pursuing potential acquisition
candidates or that the consequences of any acquisition would be beneÑcial to us. Future acquisitions may
involve the expenditure of signiÑcant funds and management time. Depending on the nature, size and timing
of future acquisitions, we may be required to raise additional Ñnancing, which may not be available to us on
acceptable terms. Our current operational cash Öow is suÇcient to fund our current acquisition plans, but a
signiÑcant acquisition would require access to the capital markets. Further, we may not be able to successfully
integrate any acquired business with our existing businesses or recognize expected beneÑts from any
completed acquisition.

If we cannot continue to develop, manufacture and market products that meet customer demands, our
revenues and gross margins may suÅer.

Our continued success depends, in part, on our ability to continue to meet our customers' needs for welding
products through the introduction of innovative new products and the enhancement of existing product design
and performance characteristics. We must remain committed to product research and development and
customer service in order to remain competitive. Accordingly, we may spend a proportionately greater amount
on research and development than some of our competitors. We cannot be assured that new products or
product improvements, once developed, will meet with customer acceptance and contribute positively to our
operating results, or that we will be able to continue our product development eÅorts at a pace to sustain future
growth. Further, we may lose customers to our competitors if they demonstrate product design, development
or manufacturing capabilities superior to ours.

The competitive pressures we face could harm our revenue, gross margins and prospects.

We operate in a highly competitive global environment and compete in each of our businesses with other
broad line manufacturers and numerous smaller competitors specializing in particular products. We compete
primarily on the basis of brand, product quality, price and performance, warranty, delivery, service and
technical support. If our products, services, support and cost structure do not enable us to compete
successfully based on any of those criteria, our operations, results and prospects could suÅer.

Further, in the past decade, the United States arc welding industry has been subject to increased levels of
foreign competition as low cost imports have become more readily available. This foreign competition
intensiÑes as the value of the U.S. dollar falls in relation to other currencies.

Our competitive position could also be harmed if new or emerging competitors become more active in the arc
welding business. For example, while steel manufacturers traditionally have not been signiÑcant competitors in
the domestic arc welding industry, some foreign integrated steel producers have begun to manufacture
selected consumable arc welding products. Our sales and results of operations, as well as our plans to expand
in some foreign countries, could be harmed by this practice as well.

We conduct our sales and distribution operations on a worldwide basis and are subject to the risks
associated with doing business outside the United States.

Our long-term strategy is to increase our share in growing international markets, particularly Asia (with
emphasis in China), Latin America, Eastern Europe and other developing markets. In recent years, we have
expanded our operations abroad by gaining a manufacturing presence in Poland, Venezuela, Colombia and
China. There are a number of risks in doing business abroad, which may impede our ability to achieve our
strategic objectives relating to our foreign operations. Many developing countries, like Venezuela, have a
signiÑcant degree of political and economic uncertainty that may impede our ability to implement and achieve
our foreign growth objectives. In addition, compliance with multiple and potentially conÖicting foreign laws
and regulations, import and export limitations and exchange controls is burdensome and expensive.
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Moreover, social unrest, the absence of trained labor pools and the uncertainties associated with entering into
joint ventures or similar arrangements in foreign countries have slowed our business expansion into some
developing economies. Our presence in China has been facilitated largely through joint venture agreements
with local organizations. While this strategy has allowed us to gain a footprint in China while leveraging the
experience of local organizations, it also presents corporate governance and management challenges.

Our foreign operations also subject us to the risks of international terrorism and hostilities and to foreign
currency risks, including exchange rate Öuctuations and limits on the repatriation of funds.

Our operations depend on maintaining a skilled workforce, and any interruption in our workforce could
negatively impact our results of operations and Ñnancial condition.

We are dependent on our highly trained technical sales force and the support of our welding research and
development staÅ. Any interruption of our workforce, including interruptions due to unionization eÅorts,
changes in labor relations or shortages of appropriately skilled individuals for our research, production and
sales forces could impact our results of operations and Ñnancial condition.

Our revenues and results of operations may suÅer if we cannot continue to enforce the intellectual
property rights on which our business depends or if third parties assert that we violate their intellectual
property rights.

We rely upon patent, trademark, copyright and trade secret laws in the United States and similar laws in
foreign countries, as well as agreements with our employees, customers, suppliers and other third parties, to
establish and maintain our intellectual property rights. However, any of our intellectual property rights could
be challenged, invalidated or circumvented, or our intellectual property rights may not be suÇcient to provide
a competitive advantage. Further, the laws of certain foreign countries do not protect our proprietary rights to
the same extent as U.S. laws. Accordingly, in certain countries, we may be unable to protect our proprietary
rights against unauthorized third-party copying or use, which could impact our competitive position.

Further, third parties may claim that we or our customers are infringing upon their intellectual property rights.
Even if we believe that those claims are without merit, defending those claims can be time-consuming and
costly. Claims of intellectual property infringement also might require us to redesign aÅected products, enter
into costly settlement or license agreements or pay costly damage awards, or face a temporary or permanent
injunction prohibiting us from manufacturing, marketing or selling certain of our products.

Our global operations are subject to increasingly complex environmental regulatory requirements.

We are subject to increasingly complex environmental regulations aÅecting international manufacturers,
including those related to air and water emissions and waste management. Further, it is our policy to apply
strict standards for environmental protection to sites inside and outside the United States, even when we are
not subject to local government regulations. We may incur substantial costs, including cleanup costs, Ñnes and
civil or criminal sanctions, liabilities resulting from third-party property damage or personal injury claims, or
our products could be enjoined from entering certain jurisdictions, if we were to violate or become liable under
environmental laws or if our products become non-compliant with environmental laws.

We also face increasing complexity in our products design and procurement operations as we adjust to new
and future requirements relating to the design, production and labeling of our electrical equipment products
that are sold in the European Union. The ultimate costs under environmental laws and the timing of these
costs are diÇcult to predict, and liability under some environmental laws relating to contaminated sites can be
imposed retroactively and on a joint and several basis.
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Item 1B. Unresolved StaÅ Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

The Company's corporate headquarters and principal United States manufacturing facilities are located in the
Cleveland, Ohio area. Total Cleveland area property consists of 227 acres, of which present manufacturing
facilities comprise an area of approximately 2,713,000 square feet.

In addition to the principal facilities in the Cleveland, Ohio area, the Company operates four other
manufacturing locations in the United States and 27 manufacturing locations (including joint ventures) in 18
foreign countries, the locations of which are as follows:

United States: Mason, Ohio; Cranston, Rhode Island; Gainesville,
Georgia; Santa Fe Springs, California.

Australia: Sydney.

Brazil: Sao Paulo.

Canada: Toronto; Mississauga.

Colombia: Bogota.

England: SheÇeld.

France: Grand-Quevilly.

Germany: Essen.

Indonesia: Cikarang.

Ireland: Rathnew.

Italy: Bologna; Milano; Genoa; Arezzo.

Mexico: Mexico City; Torreon.

Netherlands: Nijmegen.

People's Republic of China: Shanghai; Jining, Inner Mongolia; Jinzhou;
Jiangyin; Nanjing.

Poland: Bielawa.

Spain: Barcelona.

Taiwan: Tainan.

Turkey: Istanbul.

Venezuela: Maracay.

All properties relating to the Company's Cleveland, Ohio headquarters and manufacturing facilities are owned
outright by the Company. In addition, the Company maintains operating leases for its distribution centers and
many sales oÇces throughout the world. See Note M to the consolidated Ñnancial statements with respect to
lease commitments. Most of the Company's foreign subsidiaries own manufacturing facilities in the foreign
country where they are located. At December 31, 2005, $4.5 million of indebtedness was secured by property,
plant and equipment with a book value of $11.3 million.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

The Company is subject, from time to time, to a variety of civil and administrative proceedings arising out of
its normal operations, including, without limitation, product liability claims and health, safety and environ-
mental claims. Among such proceedings are the cases described below.

At December 31, 2005, the Company was a co-defendant in cases alleging asbestos induced illness involving
claims by approximately 34,667 plaintiÅs, which is a net decrease of 3,888 claims from December 31, 2004. In
each instance, the Company is one of a large number of defendants. The asbestos claimants seek
compensatory and punitive damages, in most cases for unspeciÑed sums. Since January 1, 1995, the Company
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has been a co-defendant in other similar cases that have been resolved as follows: 19,443 of those claims were
dismissed, 9 were tried to defense verdicts, 4 were tried to plaintiÅ verdicts and 304 were decided in favor of
the Company following summary judgment motions. The Company has appealed or will appeal the
4 judgments based on verdicts against the Company. On December 29, 2005, the New York State Appellate
Division aÇrmed 2 of the 4 judgments but the Company is seeking reconsideration and reviewing other
appellate options.

At December 31, 2005, the Company was a co-defendant in cases alleging manganese induced illness
involving claims by approximately 8,724 plaintiÅs, which is a net decrease of 1,466 from December 31, 2004.
In each instance, the Company is one of a large number of defendants. The claimants in cases alleging
manganese induced illness seek compensatory and punitive damages, in most cases for unspeciÑed sums. The
claimants allege that exposure to manganese contained in welding consumables caused the plaintiÅs to
develop adverse neurological conditions, including a condition known as manganism. At December 31, 2005,
cases involving 5,371 claimants were Ñled in or transferred to federal court where the Judicial Panel on
MultiDistrict Litigation has coordinated these cases for pretrial proceedings in the Northern District of Ohio
(the ""MDL Court''). PlaintiÅs have also Ñled 8 class actions seeking medical monitoring in 6 state courts and
in Federal court in California. Seven of these cases have been removed to the MDL Court. Since January 1,
1995, the Company has been a co-defendant in similar cases that have been resolved as follows: 5,704 of those
claims were dismissed, 8 were tried to defense verdicts in favor of the Company, 2 were tried to hung juries, 1
of which resulted in a plaintiÅ's verdict upon retrial, and 1 of which resulted in a defense verdict
(subsequently, however, a motion for a new trial has been granted) and 12 were settled for immaterial
amounts. On December 20, 2005, the Fifth District Appellate Court of Illinois aÇrmed the judgment in the
one case tried to a plaintiÅ's verdict. The Company is seeking further appellate review.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the quarter ended December 31, 2005.

PART II

Item 5. Market for the Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases
of Equity Securities

The Company's common shares are traded on The NASDAQ Stock Market under the symbol ""LECO.'' The
number of record holders of common shares at December 31, 2005 was 2,022.

The total amount of dividends paid in 2005 was $30,037,268. For 2005, dividends were paid quarterly on
January 15, April 15, July 15 and October 14.

Quarterly high and low stock prices and dividends declared for the last two years were:

2005 2004

Dividends Dividends
High Low Declared High Low Declared

March 31ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $35.01 $29.18 $0.18 $28.46 $22.31 $0.17
June 30 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 33.59 28.49 0.18 34.96 27.92 0.17
September 30 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 40.12 32.48 0.18 34.41 29.45 0.17
December 31ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 42.44 37.09 0.19 36.00 31.15 0.18
Source: The NASDAQ Stock Market
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Year Ended December 31

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

(In thousands of dollars, except per share data)

Net sales $1,601,190 $1,333,675 $1,040,589 $994,077 $ 978,877
Income before the cumulative eÅect of

a change in accounting principle 122,306 80,596 54,542 66,882 83,589
Cumulative eÅect of a change in

accounting principle, net of tax Ì Ì Ì (37,607) Ì

Net income $ 122,306 $ 80,596 $ 54,542 $ 29,275 $ 83,589

Basic earnings per share:
Basic earnings per share before the

cumulative eÅect of a change in
accounting principle $ 2.93 $ 1.96 $ 1.32 $ 1.58 $ 1.97

Cumulative eÅect of a change in
accounting principle, net of tax Ì Ì Ì (0.89) Ì

Basic earnings per share $ 2.93 $ 1.96 $ 1.32 $ 0.69 $ 1.97

Diluted earnings per share:
Diluted earnings per share before the

cumulative eÅect of a change in
accounting principle $ 2.90 $ 1.94 $ 1.31 $ 1.56 $ 1.96

Cumulative eÅect of a change in
accounting principle, net of tax Ì Ì Ì (0.88) Ì

Diluted earnings per share $ 2.90 $ 1.94 $ 1.31 $ 0.68 $ 1.96

Cash dividends declared $ 0.73 $ 0.69 $ 0.64 $ 0.61 $ 0.60

Total assets $1,161,161 $1,059,164 $ 928,866 $901,269 $ 781,311

Long-term debt $ 157,853 $ 163,931 $ 169,030 $174,146 $ 24,181

2005 includes a pre-tax charge of $1,761 ($1,303 after-tax) relating to the Company's rationalization
programs in Europe (See Note F), a one-time state income tax beneÑt of $1,807 (net of federal beneÑt)
relating to changes in Ohio tax laws, a favorable adjustment of $8,711 related to the resolution of prior years'
tax liabilities, a net favorable tax beneÑt of $1,146 associated with the repatriation of foreign earnings and a
pre-tax gain of $1,418 ($876 after-tax) on the settlement of legal disputes.

2004 includes a pre-tax charge of $2,440 ($2,061 after-tax) relating to the Company's rationalization
programs in Europe (See Note F), and $4,525 ($2,828 after-tax) in pension settlement provisions, accrued
base pay, bonus, and stock compensation related to the retirement of the Company's past Chairman and CEO.

2003 included a pre-tax charge of $1,743 ($1,367 after-tax) relating to a Company rationalization program
(see Note F).

2002 included a pre-tax charge of $10,468 ($7,045 after-tax) relating to a Company rationalization program
and a pre-tax charge for the cumulative eÅect of an accounting change of $38,307 ($37,607 after-tax).

2001 included a $3,087 gain ($2,007 after-tax) on the sale of property, partially oÅset by a charge of $1,144
($744 after-tax) relating to severance and redundancy costs in Europe.
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
(In thousands of dollars, except share and per share data)

The following discussions of Ñnancial condition and results of operations should be read together with
""Selected Financial Data,'' the Company's consolidated Ñnancial statements and other Ñnancial information
included elsewhere in this report. This report contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and
uncertainties. Our actual results may diÅer materially from those indicated in the forward-looking statements.
See Risk Factors in Item 1A for more information regarding forward-looking statements.

GENERAL

The Company is the world's largest designer and manufacturer of arc welding and cutting products,
manufacturing a full line of arc welding equipment, consumable welding products and other welding and
cutting products.

The Company is one of only a few worldwide broad line manufacturers of both arc welding equipment and
consumable products. Welding products include arc welding power sources, wire feeding systems, robotic
welding packages, fume extraction equipment, consumable electrodes and Öuxes. The Company's welding
product oÅering also includes regulators and torches used in oxy-fuel welding and cutting. With the recent
acquisition of J.W. Harris, the Company has a leading global position in the brazing and soldering alloys
market.

The Company invests in the research and development of arc welding equipment and consumable products in
order to continue its market leading product oÅering. The Company continues to invest in technologies that
improve the quality and productivity of welding products. In addition, the Company has been actively
increasing its patent application process in order to secure its technology advantage in the United States and
other major international jurisdictions. The Company believes its signiÑcant investment in research and
development and its highly trained technical sales force provides a competitive advantage in the marketplace.

The Company's products are sold in both domestic and international markets. In North America, products are
sold principally through industrial distributors, retailers and also directly to users of welding products. Outside
of North America, the Company has an international sales organization comprised of Company employees
and agents who sell products from the Company's various manufacturing sites to distributors, agents, dealers
and product users.

The Company's major end user markets include:

‚ general metal fabrication,

‚ infrastructure including oil and gas pipelines and platforms, buildings, bridges and power generation,

‚ transportation and defense industries (automotive/trucks, rail, ships and aerospace),

‚ equipment manufacturers in construction, farming and mining,

‚ retail resellers, and

‚ rental market.

The Company has, through wholly-owned subsidiaries or joint ventures, manufacturing facilities located in the
United States, Australia, Brazil, Canada, Colombia, England, France, Germany, Indonesia, Ireland, Italy,
Mexico, the Netherlands, People's Republic of China, Poland, Spain, Taiwan, Turkey and Venezuela.

The Company's sales and distribution network, coupled with its manufacturing facilities are reported as three
separate reportable segments: North America, Europe and Other Countries. EÅective April 1, 2004, the
Company realigned its reporting segments to better reÖect how management assesses and manages operations.
The realignment consisted of moving the Company's Canadian operations from the Other Countries segment
and combining it with the businesses previously reported as the United States segment to create the North
America reporting segment. Prior period information has been reclassiÑed to reÖect this realignment.
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The principal raw materials essential to the Company's business are various chemicals, electronics, steel,
engines, brass, copper and aluminum alloys, all of which are normally available for purchase in the open
market.

The Company's facilities are subject to environmental regulations. To date, compliance with these environ-
mental regulations has not had a material eÅect on the Company's earnings. The Company is ISO 9001
certiÑed at nearly all facilities worldwide. In addition, the Company is ISO 14001 certiÑed at all signiÑcant
manufacturing facilities in the United States.

Key indicators

Key economic measures relevant to the Company include industrial production trends, steel consumption,
purchasing manager indices, capacity utilization within durable goods manufacturers, and consumer conÑ-
dence indicators. Key industries which provide a relative indication of demand drivers to the Company include
farm machinery and equipment, construction and transportation, fabricated metals, electrical equipment, ship
and boat building, defense, truck manufacturing and railroad equipment. Although these measures provide key
information on trends relevant to the Company, the Company does not have available a more direct
correlation of leading indicators which can provide a forward-looking view of demand levels in the markets
which ultimately use the Company's welding products.

Key operating measures utilized by the operating units to manage the Company include orders, sales,
inventory and Ñll-rates, which provide key indicators of business trends. These measures are reported on
various cycles including daily, weekly, and monthly depending on the needs established by operating
management.

Key Ñnancial measures utilized by the Company's executive management and operating units in order to
evaluate the results of its business and in understanding key variables impacting the current and future results
of the Company include: sales, gross proÑt, selling, general and administrative expenses, earnings before
interest, taxes and bonus, operating cash Öows and capital expenditures, including applicable ratios such as
return on investment and average operating working capital to sales. These measures are reviewed at monthly,
quarterly and annual intervals and compared with historical periods as well as objectives established by the
Board of Directors of the Company.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table shows the Company's results of operations:

Year Ended December 31

2005 2004 2003

(Dollars in thousands) Amount % of Sales Amount % of Sales Amount % of Sales

Net sales $1,601,190 100.0% $1,333,675 100.0% $1,040,589 100.0%
Cost of goods sold 1,164,275 72.7% 971,317 72.8% 759,924 73.0%

Gross proÑt 436,915 27.3% 362,358 27.2% 280,665 27.0%
Selling, general &

administrative expenses 285,309 17.8% 256,616 19.2% 210,703 20.2%
Rationalization charges 1,761 0.1% 2,440 0.2% 1,743 0.2%

Operating income 149,845 9.4% 103,302 7.8% 68,219 6.6%
Interest income 4,000 0.2% 3,071 0.2% 3,187 0.3%
Equity earnings in aÇliates 3,312 0.2% 4,005 0.3% 2,923 0.3%
Other income 4,689 0.3% 3,542 0.3% 3,022 0.2%
Interest expense (7,947) (0.5)% (6,143) (0.5)% (8,124) (0.8)%

Income before income taxes 153,899 9.6% 107,777 8.1% 69,227 6.6%
Income taxes 31,593 2.0% 27,181 2.1% 14,685 1.4%

Net income $ 122,306 7.6% $ 80,596 6.0% $ 54,542 5.2%

2005 COMPARED TO 2004

Net Sales. Net sales for 2005 increased 20.1% to $1,601,190 from $1,333,675 last year. The increase in net
sales reÖects an 8.0%, or $106,376 increase due to price increases, a 7.0%, or $93,033 increase due to
acquisitions, an increase of 4.2%, or $56,325 due to volume, as well as a 0.9%, or $11,781 favorable impact of
foreign currency exchange rates. Net sales for North American operations increased 20.5% to $1,056,134 for
2005 compared to $875,422 in 2004. This increase reÖects an increase of 8.3% or $72,996 due to price
increases, an increase of 8.2%, or $72,222 due to newly acquired companies, a $28,387, or 3.2% increase in
volume from last year and a 0.8%, or $7,107 favorable impact of foreign currency exchange rates. European
sales have increased 8.9% to $305,846 in 2005 from $281,133 in the prior year. This increase is due to a 5.2%,
or $14,503 increase due to price increases, an increase of 2.0%, or $5,628 due to volume, a 1.6% or $4,390
increase in newly acquired companies, as well as a 0.1%, or $192 favorable impact of foreign currency
exchange rates. Other Countries sales increased 35.1% to $239,210 in 2005 from $177,120 in the prior year.
This increase reÖects an increase of $22,310 or 12.6% due to volume, an increase of 10.7%, or $18,877 due to
price increases, an increase of 9.3%, or $16,421 from newly acquired companies, and a 2.5%, or $4,482
favorable impact of foreign currency exchange rates.

Gross ProÑt. Gross proÑt increased 20.6% to $436,915 during 2005 compared to $362,358 in 2004. As a
percentage of net sales, Gross proÑt of 27.3% increased slightly in 2005 from 27.2% in 2004. In comparison to
2004 as a percent of sales, gross proÑt reÖects price increases implemented in the fourth quarter of 2004 to
oÅset signiÑcant increases in raw material costs which accelerated in the third quarter of 2004 in North
America. A $3,525 favorable impact of foreign currency exchange rates in 2005 also contributed to the
increase in gross proÑt. OÅsetting this increase was a shift in sales mix to traditionally lower margin
geographies and businesses, including the eÅects of recent acquisitions and declining margins due to increased
material costs and unfavorable production variances in Europe. In addition, gross proÑt in North America was
negatively impacted by an increase in product liability defense costs of approximately $5,000.

Since 2003, the Company has experienced an increase in raw material prices, including metals and chemicals.
In addition, energy costs continue to increase resulting in higher operating costs including transportation and
freight. As worldwide demand remains high, the Company expects these costs to remain at relatively elevated
levels. Although the Company believes a number of factors, including price increases, product mix, overhead
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absorption, and its continuing restructuring eÅorts will oÅset increased costs, future margins levels will be
dependent on the Company's ability to manage these cost increases.

Selling, General & Administrative (SG&A) Expenses. SG&A expenses increased $28,693, or 11.2%, for
2005, compared with 2004. The increase was primarily due to higher bonus expense of $16,445, higher selling
expenses of $7,829 due to increased sales levels, incremental selling, general and administrative expenses from
recently acquired businesses totaling $6,232, settlement losses of $2,138 incurred on the termination of a
European pension plan and the loss on the sale of a business totaling $1,942. The prior year included $4,525 of
pension settlement provisions, accrued base pay, bonus and stock compensation related to the retirement in
2004 of the Company's past Chairman and CEO.

Rationalization Charges. In 2005, the Company recorded charges of $1,761 ($1,303 after tax) related to
rationalization eÅorts in Europe. These charges related to employee severance costs covering 40 employees in
France, 64 in Ireland, 7 employees in Norway and 6 employees in Sweden. The Company expects to incur an
additional $3,600 in charges for employee severance, equipment relocation, employee retention and profes-
sional services related to rationalization eÅorts by the end of 2006. See Note F.

In 2004, the Company recorded rationalization charges of $2,440 ($2,061 after-tax). The rationalization
charges were related to employee severance, contract termination, warehouse relocation and professional fees.
Employee severance costs covering 40 employees in France, 7 employees in Norway and 6 employees in
Sweden were $1,624 ($1,268 after-tax). Costs not related to employee severance amounted to $816 ($816
after-tax).

Equity Earnings in AÇliates. Equity earnings in aÇliates decreased $693 from $4,005 in 2004 to $3,312 in
2005, due to decreased earnings at the Company's joint venture investments in Taiwan and China.

Other Income. Other income increased to $4,689 in 2005 from $3,542 in 2004. The increase was primarily
due to the settlement of legal disputes totaling $1,418 in 2005.

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased to $7,947 in 2005 from $6,143 in 2004 because of higher
interest rates.

Income Taxes. Income taxes for 2005 were $31,593 on income before income taxes of $153,899, an eÅective
rate of 20.5%, as compared with income taxes of $27,181 on income before income taxes of $107,777 or an
eÅective rate of 25.2% for 2004. The eÅective rates for 2005 and 2004 are lower than the Company's statutory
rate primarily because of the utilization of foreign and domestic tax credits, lower taxes on non-U.S. earnings,
and non-recurring items in 2005 including the resolution of prior years' tax liabilities of $8,711, an adjustment
to state deferred income taxes totaling $1,807, and a net favorable tax beneÑt of $1,146 associated with
repatriation of foreign earnings. The deferred tax adjustment reÖects the impact of a one-time state income tax
beneÑt relating to changes in Ohio tax laws, including the eÅect of lower tax rates. Excluding these non-
recurring items the Company's eÅective tax rate for 2005 was 28.1%. The increase in the eÅective tax rate,
excluding these non-recurring items, is primarily related to an increase in pre-tax income.

Net Income. Net income for 2005 was $122,306 compared to $80,596 last year. Diluted earnings per share
for 2005 was $2.90 compared to $1.94 per share in 2004. Foreign currency exchange rate movements did not
have a material eÅect on net income in 2005 or 2004.

2004 COMPARED TO 2003

Net Sales. Net sales for 2004 increased 28.2% to $1,333,675 from $1,040,589 in 2003. The increase in net
sales reÖects an increase of 13.2%, or $137,779 due to volume, a 9.5%, or $99,181 increase due to price
increases, a 2.3%, or $24,135 increase due to acquisitions, as well as a 3.1%, or $31,991 favorable impact of
foreign currency exchange rates. Net sales for North American operations increased 24.4% to $875,423 for
2004, compared to $703,999 in 2003. This increase reÖects an increase of 14.0%, or $98,605 due to volume, a
9.5%, or $67,134 increase due to price increases and a 0.8%, or $5,685 favorable impact of foreign currency
exchange rates. U.S. export sales of $77,023 were up $14,862, or 23.9% from 2003. U.S. exports have
increased into all regions, primarily due to higher demand and the weaker U.S. dollar. European sales have
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increased 24.1% to $281,133 in 2004 from $226,560 in 2003. This increase reÖects an increase of 9.1%, or
$20,705 due to volume, a 3.8%, or $8,618 increase due to price increases and an 11.1%, or $25,250 favorable
impact of foreign currency exchange rates. Other Countries sales increased 61.0% to $177,119 in 2004 from
$110,030 in 2003. This increase reÖects an increase of 21.9%, or $24,135 from newly acquired companies, an
increase of $18,469, or 16.8% due to volume, a 21.3%, or $23,429 increase due to price increases and a 1.0%, or
$1,056 favorable impact of foreign currency exchange rates.

Gross ProÑt. Gross proÑt increased 29.1% to $362,358 during 2004 compared to $280,665 in 2003. Gross
proÑt as a percentage of net sales increased to 27.2% in 2004 from 27.0% in 2003. Gross proÑt margins in
North America and Europe increased primarily due to higher sales volumes and price increases, oÅset by a
signiÑcant increase in material costs and related LIFO inventory valuation charges to cost of goods sold of
$20,888 compared with $630 in 2003. The increase in LIFO reserve charges was caused by substantial
inÖation in commodity prices in 2004, primarily steel. LIFO matches the most recently incurred costs with
current revenues by charging cost of goods sold with the costs of goods most recently acquired or produced. In
periods of rising prices, reported costs under LIFO are greater than under the FIFO method. In addition,
margins were also negatively impacted by increases in product liability defense costs of $4,967 over 2003.
Other Countries gross margins in 2004 were relatively Öat compared to 2003 as the favorable eÅects of higher
sales volume and price increases were oÅset by higher material costs. Foreign currency exchange rates had a
positive impact on gross proÑt of $8,295, or 3.0% during 2004 when compared to 2003.

Selling, General & Administrative (SG&A) Expenses. SG&A expenses increased $45,913, or 21.8%, for
2004, compared with 2003. The increase was primarily due to higher bonus expense of $20,206, an $8,922
increase in selling costs as a result of increased volume, a $5,789 unfavorable impact due to foreign exchange
translation, $4,525 in pension settlement provisions, accrued base pay, bonus and stock compensation related
to the retirement of the Company's past Chairman and CEO, stock-based compensation expense of $2,289
and $1,181 related to newly acquired companies. These increases were partially oÅset by lower pension
expense of $1,993.

Rationalization Charges. In 2004, the Company recorded rationalization charges of $2,440 ($2,061 after-
tax) related to rationalization eÅorts in Europe. The rationalization charges were related to employee
severance, contract termination, warehouse relocation and professional fees. Employee severance costs
covering 43 employees in France, 7 employees in Norway and 6 employees in Sweden were $1,624 ($1,336
after-tax). Costs not related to employee severance amounted to $816 ($816 after-tax). See Note F.

During 2003, the Company recorded rationalization charges of $1,743 ($1,367 after-tax). The rationalization
charges were related to asset impairments and severance charges. Non-cash asset impairment charges of $900
relate to property, plant and equipment at one of the Company's European subsidiaries where management
believed the carrying values were unrecoverable. Severance charges were $843 primarily covering 57
U.S. employees. Severance charges were incurred to eliminate redundancies and improve organizational
eÇciency.

Equity Earnings in AÇliates. Equity earnings in aÇliates increased $1,082 in 2004 compared to 2003,
primarily due to higher earnings of the Company's joint venture investment in Turkey.

Other Income. Other income increased $520 in 2004. The increase is primarily due to higher investment
income on long-term investment assets and gains on asset disposals.

Interest Expense. Interest expense was $6,143 in 2004, compared to $8,124 in 2003, a decrease of 24.2%. The
decrease in interest expense was due to the eÅect of interest rate swaps, including the amortization of a gain on
the termination of interest rate swaps, as described below under ""Liquidity and Capital Resources Ì Long-
term debt.'' The amortization of this gain reduced interest expense by $2,117 in 2004 and will reduce annual
interest expense by $2,117 in 2005.

Income Taxes. Income taxes for 2004 were $27,181 on income before income taxes of $107,777, an eÅective
rate of 25.2%, as compared with income taxes of $14,685 on income before income taxes of $69,227, or an
eÅective rate of 21.2% for the same period in 2003. The eÅective rates for 2004 and 2003 are lower than the
Company's statutory rate primarily because of the utilization of foreign and domestic tax credits, lower taxes
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on non-U.S. earnings and the utilization of foreign tax loss carryforwards. The increase in the eÅective tax rate
from 2003 to 2004 is primarily because of an increase in taxable income.

Net Income. Net income for 2004 was $80,596 compared to $54,542 for 2003. Diluted earnings per share for
2004 was $1.94 compared to $1.31 per share in 2003. Foreign currency exchange rate movements had a $3,065
favorable eÅect on 2004 net income, and did not have a material eÅect on net income for 2003.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company's cash Öow from operations, while cyclical, has been relatively reliable and consistent.
Operational cash Öow is a key driver of liquidity, providing cash and access to capital markets. In assessing
liquidity, the Company reviews working capital measurements to deÑne areas of improvement. Management
anticipates the Company will be able to satisfy cash requirements for its ongoing businesses for the foreseeable
future primarily with cash generated by operations, existing cash balances and, if necessary, borrowings under
its existing credit facilities.

The following table reÖects changes in key cash Öow measures:

Year Ended December 31

(Dollars in thousands) 2005 2004 Change

Cash provided by operating activities $117,024 $ 51,260 $ 65,764
Cash used by investing activities: (69,473) (58,490) (10,983)

Capital expenditures (50,415) (56,441) 6,026
Sales (purchases) of marketable securities, net 55,441 6,178 49,263
Acquisitions, net of cash received (78,174) (11,815) (66,359)

Cash used by Ñnancing activities: (28,127) (16,921) (11,206)
Payments on long-term borrowings (15,471) (5,178) (10,293)
Purchase of shares for treasury (12,803) (4,368) (8,435)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 21,230 22,555 (1,325)
Cash dividends paid to shareholders (30,037) (27,485) (2,552)

Increase (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents 15,188 (21,066) 36,254

Cash and cash equivalents increased 16.3%, or $15,188 to $108,007 as of December 31, 2005, from $92,819 as
of December 31, 2004. This compares to a $21,066 decrease in cash and cash equivalents during 2004.

Cash provided by operating activities increased by $65,764 for 2005 compared to 2004. The increase was
primarily related to an increase in Net income and less of an increase in working capital when compared to
2004. Accounts receivable and Inventories increased less in the current year as the Company did not
experience a growth in sales during 2005 as signiÑcant as 2004. Days' sales in inventory decreased from
120.6 days at December 31, 2004 to 114.8 days at December 31, 2005, and accounts receivable days decreased
from 60.7 days at December 31, 2004 to 56.1 days at December 31, 2005. Average days in accounts payable
decreased to 40.2 days at December 31, 2005 from 43.1 days at December 31, 2004.

Cash used by investing activities increased $10,983 for 2005 compared to 2004. The increase was primarily
due to the acquisition of J.W. Harris for approximately $71,000, net of cash acquired. This was partially oÅset
by a net increase in the proceeds from the sale of marketable securities of $49,263. Capital expenditures
during 2005 were $50,415, a $6,026 decrease from 2004. The Company anticipates capital expenditures in
2006 of approximately $50,000. Anticipated capital expenditures reÖect the need to expand the Company's
manufacturing capabilities as a result of increases in customer demand, targeted productivity improvements
and planned cost reduction projects. Management critically evaluates all proposed capital expenditures and
requires each project to increase eÇciency, reduce costs or promote business growth. Management does not
anticipate signiÑcant unusual future cash outlays relating to capital expenditures.

Cash used by Ñnancing activities increased $11,206 in 2005 compared to 2004. The increase was primarily due
to an increase in payments on long-term borrowings of $10,293 and an increase in treasury share purchases
during 2005 of $8,435, partially oÅset by an increase in short-term borrowings of $11,399.
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The Company's debt levels decreased from $167,374 at December 31, 2004, to $166,016 at December 31,
2005. Debt to total capitalization decreased to 20.3% at December 31, 2005, from 22.5% at December 31,
2004.

The Company's Board of Directors authorized share repurchase programs for up to 15 million shares of the
Company's common stock. During 2005, the Company purchased 429,890 shares of its common stock on the
open market at a cost of $12,803. Total shares purchased through the share repurchase programs were
10,241,673 shares at a cost of $216,266 through December 31, 2005.

A total of $30,037 in dividends was paid during 2005. In January 2006, the Company paid a quarterly cash
dividend of 19 cents per share to shareholders of record on December 31, 2005.

Acquisitions

On April 29, 2005, the Company acquired all of the outstanding stock of J.W. Harris Co., Inc. (""J.W.
Harris''), a privately held brazing and soldering alloys manufacturer headquartered in Mason, Ohio for
approximately $71,000 in cash and $15,000 of assumed debt. The Company began consolidating the results of
J.W. Harris operations in the Company's consolidated Ñnancial statements in May 2005.

The purchase price allocation for this investment resulted in goodwill of $9,103. Included in the aggregate
purchase price is $4,160 deposited in escrow accounts. Distribution of amounts in escrow is dependent on
resolution of pre-closing contingencies. Amounts remaining in escrow as of the second anniversary of the
closing date will be distributed to the former shareholders of J.W. Harris and will result in adjustments to the
purchase price allocation.

The Company expects this acquisition to provide a strong complementary metals-joining technology and a
leading position in the brazing and soldering alloys market. Headquartered in Mason, Ohio, J.W. Harris has
approximately 300 employees and manufacturing plants in Ohio and Rhode Island. An international
distribution center is located in Spain. Annual sales are approximately $110,000. The J.W. Harris business
contributed sales of $75,546 and earnings of $0.04 per diluted share during the eight months ended
December 31, 2005.

In 2004, the Company invested approximately $12,000 into Shanghai Lincoln Electric (""SLE'') to acquire a
70% ownership interest and to fund the Company's Chinese expansion program. The Company began
consolidating the results of SLE's operations in the Company's consolidated Ñnancial statements in June 2004.
In November 2005, the Company invested an additional $5,500 into SLE increasing its ownership interest to
78%. SLE is a manufacturer of Öux-cored wire and other consumables located in China and will also
incorporate the Company's Chinese equipment manufacturing facilities. Equipment manufacturing com-
menced in the Ñrst quarter of 2006.

Also in 2004, the Company purchased 70% of the Rui Tai Welding and Metal Co. Ltd. for approximately
$10,000, net of cash acquired, plus debt assumed of approximately $2,000. Rui Tai subsequently changed its
name to Lincoln Electric Inner Mongolia (""LEIM''). The Company began consolidating the results of
LEIM's operations in the Company's consolidated Ñnancial statements in July 2004. LEIM is a manufacturer
of stick electrodes located in northern China.

The purchase price allocation for these investments in China resulted in goodwill of approximately $11,000.

The Company expects, in the longer-term, these Chinese acquisitions, along with other planned investments in
China, will provide a strong equipment and consumable manufacturing base in China, improve the Company's
distribution network, and strengthen the Company's expanding market position in the Asia PaciÑc region.
These acquired businesses generated $36,338 of sales during the twelve months ended December 31, 2005
with no signiÑcant contribution to net income.

The Company continues to expand globally and periodically evaluates transactions that would involve
signiÑcant capital expenditures. The Company's operational cash Öow can fund the global expansion plans, but
a signiÑcant acquisition would require access to the capital markets, in particular, the public and/or private
bond market, as well as the syndicated bank loan market. The Company's Ñnancing strategy is to fund itself at
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the lowest after-tax cost of funding. Where possible, the Company utilizes operational cash Öows and raises
capital in the most eÇcient market, usually the U.S., and then lends funds to the speciÑc subsidiary that
requires funding. If additional acquisitions and major projects providing appropriate Ñnancial beneÑts become
available, additional expenditures may be made.

Short-term and Long-term debt

Senior Unsecured Notes

During March 2002, the Company issued Senior Unsecured Notes (the ""Notes'') totaling $150,000 through a
private placement. The Notes have original maturities ranging from Ñve to ten years with a weighted-average
interest rate of 6.1% and an average tenure of eight years. Interest is payable semi-annually in March and
September. The proceeds are being used for general corporate purposes, including acquisitions and to
purchase shares under the share repurchase program. The proceeds are generally invested in short-term,
highly liquid investments. The Notes contain certain aÇrmative and negative covenants, including restrictions
on asset dispositions and Ñnancial covenants (interest coverage and funded debt-to-""EBITDA'' ratios). As of
December 31, 2005, the Company was in compliance with all of its debt covenants.

The maturity and interest rates of the Notes follow (in thousands):

Amount
Due Matures Interest Rate

Series A $40,000 March 2007 5.58%
Series B $30,000 March 2009 5.89%
Series C $80,000 March 2012 6.36%

During March 2002, the Company entered into Öoating rate interest rate swap agreements totaling $80,000, to
convert a portion of the outstanding Notes from Ñxed to Öoating rates. These swaps were designated as fair
value hedges, and as such, the gain or loss on the derivative instrument, as well as the oÅsetting gain or loss on
the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk were recognized in earnings. Net payments or receipts under
these agreements were recognized as adjustments to interest expense. In May 2003, these swap agreements
were terminated. The gain on the termination of these swaps was $10,613, and has been deferred and is being
amortized as an oÅset to interest expense over the remaining life of the instrument. The amortization of this
gain reduced interest expense by $2,117 in 2005 and is expected to reduce annual interest expense by $2,117 in
2006 and $1,121 in 2007. At December 31, 2005, $4,951 remains to be amortized and is included in Long-
term debt. The Ñnancing costs related to the $150,000 private placement are further reduced by the interest
income earned on the cash balances. These short-term, highly liquid investments earned approximately $1,985
during 2005.

During July 2003 and April 2004, the Company entered into various Öoating rate interest rate swap
agreements totaling $110,000, to convert a portion of the outstanding Notes from Ñxed to Öoating rates based
on the London Inter-Bank OÅered Rate (""LIBOR''), plus a spread of between 179.75 and 226.5 basis points.
The variable rates are reset every six months, at which time payment or receipt of interest will be settled.
These swaps are designated as fair value hedges, and as such, the gain or loss on the derivative instrument, as
well as the oÅsetting gain or loss on the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are recognized in earnings.
Net payments or receipts under these agreements will be recognized as adjustments to interest expense. The
fair value of these swaps is included in Other long-term liabilities with a corresponding decrease in Long-term
debt. The fair value of these swaps at December 31, 2005 was $2,964.

Terminated swaps have increased the values of the Series A Notes from $40,000 to $41,328, the Series B
Notes from $30,000 to $32,354 and the Series C Notes from $80,000 to $81,269 as of December 31, 2005. The
weighted-average eÅective rate on the Notes for 2005 and 2004 was 3.95% and 3.07%, respectively.
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Revolving Credit Agreement

On December 17, 2004, the Company entered into a $175,000, Ñve-year revolving Credit Agreement. This
agreement replaced the Company's prior $125,000, three-year revolving credit facility entered into on
April 24, 2002. The new Credit Agreement may be used for general corporate purposes and may be increased,
subject to certain conditions, by an additional amount up to $75,000. The interest rate on borrowings under the
Credit Agreement is based on either LIBOR plus a spread based on the Company's leverage ratio or the prime
rate, at the Company's election. A quarterly facility fee is payable based upon the daily aggregate amount of
commitments and the Company's leverage ratio. The Credit Agreement contains customary aÇrmative and
negative covenants for credit facilities of this type, including limitations on the Company and its subsidiaries
with respect to indebtedness, liens, investments, distributions, mergers and acquisitions, dispositions of assets,
subordinated debt and transactions with aÇliates. As of December 31, 2005, there are no borrowings under the
Credit Agreement.

Short-term Borrowings

The Company's short-term borrowings included in Amounts due banks were $7,143 and $2,561 at Decem-
ber 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, and represent the borrowings of foreign subsidiaries at weighted-average
interest rates of 10.35% and 8.68%, respectively.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The Company's contractual obligations and commercial commitments (as deÑned by Section 13(j) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934) as of December 31, 2005 are as follows (in thousands):

Payments Due by Period

2007 to 2009 to 2011 and
Total 2006 2008 2010 Beyond

Long-term debt $153,312 $ 390 $40,823 $30,424 $81,675
Interest on long-term debt 43,784 9,546 15,670 10,805 7,763
Capital lease obligations 3,574 630 952 969 1,023
Short-term debt 7,143 7,143 Ì Ì Ì
Operating leases 16,131 5,165 6,574 2,338 2,054

Total contractual cash obligations $223,944 $22,874 $64,019 $44,536 $92,515

Additionally, the Company has provided a guarantee on a loan for a joint venture of approximately $4,000 at
December 31, 2005. The guarantee is provided on two loan agreements totaling $2,000 each, one which
expires in October 2006 and the other expiring in May 2007.

Stock-based Compensation

EÅective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted the fair value method of recording stock options contained in
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (""SFAS'') No. 123 ""Accounting for Stock-Based Compensa-
tion.'' All employee stock option grants beginning January 1, 2003 are expensed over the stock option vesting
period based on the fair value at the date the options are granted. Prior to 2003, the Company applied the
intrinsic value method permitted under SFAS No. 123, as deÑned in Accounting Principles Board (""APB'')
Opinion No. 25, ""Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees'' and related interpretations, in accounting for the
Company's stock option plans. Accordingly, no compensation cost was recognized in years prior to 2003.

The 1998 Stock Plan as amended in May 2003, provides for the granting of options, tandem appreciation
rights (""TARs''), restricted shares and deferred shares up to an aggregate of 5,000,000 of the Company's
common shares.

Tandem appreciation rights are granted concurrently with options, and represent the right, exercisable by
surrender of the underlying option, to receive in cash, an amount equal to the increase in market value from
the grant price of the Company's common shares. TARs payable in cash require the recording of a liability
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and related compensation expense to be measured by the diÅerence between the quoted market price of the
number of common shares covered by the grant and the option price per common share at grant date. Any
increases or decreases in the market price of the common shares between grant date and exercise date result in
changes to the Company's compensation expense. Compensation expense is accrued over the vesting period.
In addition, changes in the market price of common shares after the vesting period, but prior to the exercise
date, require changes in compensation expense. During 2004, the Company modiÑed existing TARs by
eliminating the cash settlement feature. This modiÑcation required that the TARs be accounted for as equity
awards. The associated liability for compensation expense recognized prior to the date of modiÑcation of
$2,434 was reclassiÑed from Other non-current liabilities to Additional paid-in-capital. The unrecognized
compensation cost, equal to the diÅerence between the fair value of the TARs on the date of the modiÑcation
and compensation cost previously recognized, will be recognized over the remaining vesting period of the
TARs. TARs payable in common shares will be accounted for as stock options and the fair value method of
accounting under SFAS No. 123 will be utilized. Subsequent changes in share values will not aÅect
compensation expense. During 2004, 30,000 TARs were issued. There were no TARs issued during 2005.

Restricted shares and deferred shares require compensation expense to be measured by the quoted market
price on the grant date. Expense is recognized by allocating the aggregate fair value at grant date over the
vesting period. No expense is recognized for any shares ultimately forfeited because the recipients fail to meet
the vesting requirements. The Company issued 33,970 restricted shares at a market price of $39.93 per share
in 2005. There were no restricted shares issued in 2004 and no deferred shares were issued during 2005 or
2004.

The Company issued 964,254 shares of common stock from treasury upon exercise of employee stock options
during 2005.

The eÅect of all stock-based awards decreased earnings per share by approximately $0.05 and $0.06 in 2005
and 2004, respectively. Stock-based awards were immaterial to earnings per share in 2003.

Product Liability Expense

Product liability expenses have been increasing, particularly with respect to the increased number of welding
fume claims. The costs associated with these claims are predominantly defense costs, which are recognized in
the periods incurred. Net expenditures on product liability increased approximately $5,000 in 2005 compared
to 2004. These net expenditures are not expected to increase materially in 2006 compared to 2005. See
Note N. The long-term impact of the welding fume loss contingency, in the aggregate, on operating cash Öows
and capital markets access is diÇcult to assess, particularly since claims are in many diÅerent stages of
development and the Company beneÑts signiÑcantly from cost sharing with co-defendants and insurance
carriers. Moreover, the Company has been largely successful to date in its defense of these claims and
indemnity payments have been immaterial. If cost sharing dissipates for some currently unforeseen reason, or
the Company's trial experience changes overall, it is possible on a longer term basis that the cost of resolving
this loss contingency could reduce the Company's operating results and cash Öow and restrict capital market
access.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company utilizes letters of credit to back certain payment and performance obligations. Letters of credit
are subject to limits based on amounts outstanding under the Company's Credit Agreement. Outstanding
letters of credit at December 31, 2005 were immaterial. The Company has also provided a guarantee on a loan
for a joint venture of $4,000 at December 31, 2005. The Company believes the likelihood is remote that
material payment will be required under this arrangement because of the current Ñnancial condition of the
joint venture.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In June 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (""FASB'') issued StaÅ Position No. 143-1
""Accounting for Electronic Equipment Waste Obligations'' (""FSP 143-1''), which provides guidance on the
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accounting for obligations associated with the Directive on Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment (the
""WEEE Directive''), which was adopted by the European Union. FSP 143-1 provides guidance on accounting
for the eÅects of the WEEE Directive with respect to historical waste and waste associated with products on
the market on or before August 13, 2005. FSP 143-1 requires commercial users to account for their WEEE
obligation as an asset retirement liability in accordance with FASB Statement No. 143, ""Accounting for Asset
Retirement Obligations.'' FSP 143-1 was required to be applied to the later of the Ñrst reporting period ending
after June 8, 2005 or the date of the adoption of the WEEE Directive into law by the applicable European
Union member country. The WEEE Directive has been adopted into law by the majority of European Union
member countries in which the Company has signiÑcant operations. The Company adopted the provisions of
FSP 143-1 as it relates to these countries with no material impact on its Ñnancial statements. The Company
will apply the guidance of FSP 143-1 as it relates to the remaining European Union member countries in
which it operates when those countries have adopted the WEEE Directive into law.

In March 2005, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 47 (""FIN 47'') ""Accounting for Conditional Asset
Retirement Obligations Ì an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143.'' This interpretation deÑnes the term
""conditional asset retirement obligation'' as used in FASB Statement No. 143, ""Accounting for Asset
Retirement Obligations,'' as a legal obligation to perform an asset retirement activity, in which the timing,
and/or method of settlement are conditional on a future event that may or may not be within the control of the
entity. FIN 47 requires that an obligation to perform an asset retirement activity is unconditional even though
uncertainty exists about the timing and/or method of settlement. FIN 47 also clariÑes when an entity would
have suÇcient information to reasonably estimate the fair value of an asset retirement. FIN 47 was eÅective
December 31, 2005. The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 47 with no material impact on its Ñnancial
statements.

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151 ""Inventory Costs Ì an amendment of ARB No. 43,
Chapter 4.'' This Statement amends the guidance in Accounting Research Bulletin No. 43 to require idle
facility expense, freight, handling costs, and wasted material (spoilage) be recognized as current-period
charges. In addition, SFAS No. 151 requires the allocation of Ñxed production overheads to the costs of
conversion be based on the normal capacity of production facilities. SFAS No. 151 is eÅective for inventory
costs incurred during Ñscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. The Company will adopt SFAS No. 151 on
January 1, 2006. The adoption of this standard will not have a material impact on the Company's Ñnancial
statements.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (Revised 2004), ""Share-Based Payment,'' which is a
revision of SFAS No. 123, ""Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.'' SFAS No. 123(R) supersedes APB
Opinion No. 25, ""Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.'' Generally, the approach in SFAS No. 123(R)
is similar to the approach described in SFAS 123. However, SFAS No. 123(R) requires all share-based
payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the income statement
based on their fair values. Pro forma disclosure is no longer an alternative. SFAS No. 123(R) permits public
companies to adopt its requirements using one of two methods:

A ""modiÑed prospective'' method in which compensation cost is recognized beginning with the eÅective
date (a) based on the requirements of SFAS No. 123(R) for all share-based payments granted after the
eÅective date and (b) based on the requirements of SFAS No. 123 for all awards granted to employees
prior to the eÅective date of SFAS No. 123(R) that remain unvested on the eÅective date.

A ""modiÑed retrospective'' method, which includes the requirements of the modiÑed prospective method
described above, but also permits entities to restate, based on the amounts previously recognized under
SFAS No. 123 for purposes of pro forma disclosures, either (a) all prior periods presented or (b) prior
interim periods of the year of adoption.

Under SFAS No. 123(R), public companies would have been required to implement the standard as of the
beginning of the Ñrst interim or annual period that begins after June 15, 2005. In April 2005, the Securities
and Exchange Commission adopted a rule amending the compliance dates of SFAS No. 123(R) to allow
companies to implement SFAS No. 123(R) at the beginning of their next Ñscal year, instead of the next
reporting period that begins after June 15, 2005. Early adoption was permitted in periods in which Ñnancial
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statements have not yet been issued. The Company will adopt SFAS No. 123(R) on January 1, 2006 using
the modiÑed-prospective method. The adoption of the standard will not have a material impact on the
Company's Ñnancial statements as a result of the Company adopting fair value accounting under
SFAS No. 123 on January 1, 2003.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company's consolidated Ñnancial statements are based on the selection and application of signiÑcant
accounting policies, which require management to make estimates and assumptions. These estimates and
assumptions are reviewed periodically by management and compared to historical trends to determine the
accuracy of estimates and assumptions used. If warranted, these estimates and assumptions may be changed
as current trends are assessed and updated. Historically, the Company's estimates have been determined to be
reasonable. No material changes to the Company's accounting policies were made in 2005. The Company
believes the following are some of the more critical judgment areas in the application of its accounting policies
that aÅect its Ñnancial condition and results of operations.

Legal And Tax Contingencies

The Company, like other manufacturers, is subject from time to time to a variety of civil and administrative
proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. Such claims and litigation include, without limitation,
product liability claims and health, safety and environmental claims, some of which relate to cases alleging
asbestos and manganese-induced illnesses. The costs associated with these claims are predominantly defense
costs, which are recognized in the periods incurred. Insurance reimbursements mitigate these costs and, where
reimbursements are probable, they are recognized in the applicable period. With respect to costs other than
defense costs (i.e., for liability and/or settlement or other resolution), reserves are recorded when it is
probable that the contingencies will have an unfavorable outcome. The Company accrues its best estimate of
the probable costs, after a review of the facts with management and counsel and taking into account past
experience. If an unfavorable outcome is determined to be reasonably possible but not probable, or if the
amount of loss cannot be reasonably estimated, disclosure is provided for material claims or litigation. Many of
the current cases are in preliminary procedural stages and insuÇcient information exists upon which
judgments can be made as to the validity or ultimate disposition of such actions. Therefore, in many situations
a range of possible losses cannot be made at this time. Reserves are adjusted as facts and circumstances
change and related management assessments of the underlying merits and the likelihood of outcomes change.
Moreover, reserves only cover identiÑed and/or asserted claims. Future claims could, therefore, give rise to
increases to such reserves. See Note N to the Consolidated Financial Statements and the Legal Proceedings
section of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for further discussion of legal contingencies.

The Company is subject to taxation from U.S. federal, state, municipal and international jurisdictions. The
calculation of current income tax expense is based on the best information available and involves signiÑcant
management judgment. The actual income tax liability for each jurisdiction in any year can in some instances
be ultimately determined several years after the Ñnancial statements are published.

The Company maintains reserves for estimated income tax exposures for many jurisdictions. Exposures are
settled primarily through the settlement of audits within each individual tax jurisdiction or the closing of a
statute of limitation. Exposures can also be aÅected by changes in applicable tax law or other factors, which
may cause management to believe a revision of past estimates is appropriate. Management believes that an
appropriate liability has been established for income tax exposures; however, actual results may materially
diÅer from these estimates.

Deferred Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are recognized at currently enacted tax rates for temporary diÅerences between the
Ñnancial reporting and income tax bases of assets and liabilities and operating loss and tax credit carryfor-
wards. The Company does not provide deferred income taxes on unremitted earnings of certain
non-U.S. subsidiaries which are deemed permanently reinvested. It is not practicable to calculate the deferred
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taxes associated with the remittance of these earnings. At December 31, 2005, the Company had approxi-
mately $69,087 of gross deferred tax assets related to deductible temporary diÅerences and tax loss and credit
carryforwards which may reduce taxable income in future years.

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, the Company assesses whether it is more likely than not
that a portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The Company considers the scheduled
reversal of deferred tax liabilities, tax planning strategies, and projected future taxable income in making this
assessment. At December 31, 2005, a valuation allowance of $17,278 had been recorded against these deferred
tax assets based on this assessment. The Company believes it is more likely than not that the tax beneÑt of the
remaining net deferred tax assets will be realized. The amount of net deferred tax assets considered realizable
could be increased or reduced in the future if the Company's assessment of future taxable income or tax
planning strategies changes.

Pensions

The Company and its subsidiaries maintain a number of deÑned beneÑt and deÑned contribution plans to
provide retirement beneÑts for employees in the U.S., as well as employees outside the U.S. These plans are
maintained and contributions are made in accordance with the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of
1974 (""ERISA''), local statutory law or as determined by the Board of Directors. The plans generally provide
beneÑts based upon years of service and compensation. Pension plans are funded except for a domestic non-
qualiÑed pension plan for certain key employees and certain foreign plans.

The Company accounts for its deÑned beneÑt plans in accordance with SFAS No. 87, ""Employers'
Accounting for Pensions,'' which requires amounts recognized in Ñnancial statements be determined on an
actuarial basis. A substantial portion of the Company's pension amounts relate to its deÑned beneÑt plan in the
United States. Upon adoption of SFAS No. 87, the market-related value of plan assets could be determined
by either fair value or a calculated value recognizing changes in fair value in a systematic and rational manner
over not more than Ñve years. The method chosen must be applied consistently year to year. The Company
used fair values at December 31 for the market-related value of plan assets.

A signiÑcant element in determining the Company's pension expense is the expected return on plan assets. At
the end of each year, the expected return on plan assets is determined based on the weighted-average expected
return of the various asset classes in the plan's portfolio and the targeted allocation of plan assets. The asset
class return is developed using historical asset return performance, as well as, current market conditions such
as inÖation, interest rates and equity market performance. The Company determined this rate to be 8.5% for
its U.S. plans at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The assumed long-term rate of return on assets is
applied to the market value of plan assets. This produces the expected return on plan assets included in
pension expense. The diÅerence between this expected return and the actual return on plan assets is deferred
and amortized over the average remaining service period of active employees expected to receive beneÑts
under the plan. The amortization of the net deferral of past losses will increase future pension expense. During
2005, investment returns in the Company's U.S. pension plans were approximately 7.7% compared to 11.3% in
2004. A 25 basis point change in the expected return on plan assets would increase or decrease pension
expense by approximately $1,300.

Another signiÑcant element in determining the Company's pension expense is the discount rate for plan
liabilities. At the end of each year, the Company determines the discount rate to be used for plan liabilities by
referring to investment yields available on long-term bonds rated Aa- or better. The Company also considers
the yield derived from matching projected pension payments with maturities of a portfolio of available non-
callable bonds rated Aa- or better. The Company determined this rate to be 5.7% and 5.9% for its U.S. plans
at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. A 25 basis point change in the discount rate would increase or
decrease pension expense by approximately $2,000.

The Company made voluntary contributions to its U.S. deÑned beneÑt plans of $31,500, $30,000 and $40,400
in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Based on current pension funding rules, the Company does not anticipate
that contributions to the plans will be required in 2006. The Company expects to voluntarily contribute
$30,000 in 2006.
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Pension expense relating to the Company's deÑned beneÑt plans was $21,328, $20,847 and $27,717 in 2005,
2004 and 2003, respectively. The Company expects 2006 pension expense to decline by approximately $2,000.

Inventories and Reserves

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. For domestic inventories, cost is determined principally
by the last-in, Ñrst-out (LIFO) method, and for non-U.S. inventories, cost is determined by the Ñrst-in, Ñrst-
out (FIFO) method. The valuation of LIFO inventories is made at the end of each year based on inventory
levels and costs at that time. The excess of current cost over LIFO cost amounted to $62,900 at December 31,
2005. The Company reviews the net realizable value of inventory in detail on an on-going basis, with
consideration given to deterioration, obsolescence and other factors. If actual market conditions diÅer from
those projected by management, and the Company's estimates prove to be inaccurate, write-downs of
inventory values and adjustments to cost of sales may be required. Historically, the Company's reserves have
approximated actual experience.

Accounts Receivable and Allowances

The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses from the failure of its
customers to make required payments for products delivered. The Company estimates this allowance based on
the age of the related receivable, knowledge of the Ñnancial condition of customers, review of historical
receivables and reserve trends and other pertinent information. If the Ñnancial condition of customers
deteriorates or an unfavorable trend in receivable collections is experienced in the future, additional
allowances may be required. Historically, the Company's reserves have approximated actual experience.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, ""Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,'' the
Company periodically evaluates whether current facts or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of its
depreciable long-lived assets to be held and used may not be recoverable. If such circumstances are
determined to exist, an estimate of undiscounted future cash Öows produced by the long-lived asset, or the
appropriate grouping of assets, is compared to the carrying value to determine whether an impairment exists.
If an asset is determined to be impaired, the loss is measured based on quoted market prices in active markets,
if available. If quoted market prices are not available, the estimate of fair value is based on various valuation
techniques, including the discounted value of estimated future cash Öows and established business valuation
multiples.

The estimates of future cash Öows, based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections, require
management's judgment. Any changes in key assumptions about the Company's businesses and their
prospects, or changes in market conditions, could result in an impairment charge.

Impairment of Goodwill and Intangibles

The Company evaluates the recoverability of goodwill and intangible assets not subject to amortization as
required under SFAS No. 142 ""Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets'' by comparing the fair value of each
reporting unit with its carrying value. The fair values of reporting units is determined using models developed
by the Company which incorporate estimates of future cash Öows, allocations of certain assets and cash Öows
among reporting units, future growth rates, established business valuation multiples, and management
judgments regarding the applicable discount rates to value those estimated cash Öows.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The Company's primary Ñnancial market risks include Öuctuations in currency exchange rates, commodity
prices and interest rates. The Company manages these risks by using derivative Ñnancial instruments in
accordance with established policies and procedures. The Company does not enter into derivatives or other
Ñnancial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.
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Included below is a sensitivity analysis based upon a hypothetical 10% weakening or strengthening in the
U.S. dollar compared to the December 31, 2005 foreign currency rates, a 10% change in commodity prices,
and a 100 basis point increase in eÅective interest rates under the Company's current borrowing arrangements.
The contractual derivative and borrowing arrangements in eÅect at December 31, 2005 were compared to the
hypothetical foreign exchange, commodity price, or interest rates in the sensitivity analysis to determine the
eÅect on Income before taxes, Interest expense, or Accumulated other comprehensive loss. The analysis takes
into consideration any oÅset that would result from changes in the value of the hedged asset or liability.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

The Company enters into forward foreign exchange contracts principally to hedge the currency Öuctuations in
transactions denominated in foreign currencies, thereby limiting the Company's risk that would otherwise
result from changes in exchange rates. At December 31, 2005, the Company hedged third party and
intercompany purchases and sales. At December 31, 2005, the Company had foreign exchange contracts with
a notional value of approximately $28,313. At December 31, 2005, a hypothetical 10% weakening of the
U.S. dollar would not materially aÅect the Company's Ñnancial statements.

At December 31, 2005, the Company also had foreign exchange contracts with a notional value of
approximately $20,534 which hedged intercompany loans. Any loss resulting from a hypothetical 10%
weakening of the U.S. dollar would be oÅset by the associated gain on the underlying intercompany loan
receivable and would not materially aÅect the Company's Ñnancial statements.

Commodity Price Risk

From time to time, the Company uses various hedging arrangements to manage exposures to price risk from
commodity purchases. These hedging arrangements have the eÅect of locking in for speciÑed periods (at
predetermined prices or ranges of prices) the prices the Company will pay for the volume to which the hedge
relates. A hypothetical 10% adverse change in commodity prices on the Company's open commodity futures at
December 31, 2005 would not materially aÅect the Company's Ñnancial statements.

Interest Rate Risk

The Company uses Öoating rate swaps to convert a portion of its $150,000 Ñxed-rate, long-term borrowings
into short-term variable interest rates. An increase in interest expense resulting from a hypothetical increase of
100 basis points in the December 31, 2005 Öoating rate would not materially aÅect the Company's Ñnancial
statements. See discussion in ""Item 7, Liquidity Ì Long-term debt.''

The fair value of the Company's cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities at December 31, 2005,
approximated carrying value due to their short-term duration. These Ñnancial instruments are also subject to
concentrations of credit risk. The Company has minimized this risk by entering into investments with major
banks and Ñnancial institutions and investing in several high-quality instruments. The Company does not
expect any counterparties to fail to meet their obligations.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The response to this item is submitted in a separate section of this report following the signature page.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Conclusion Regarding the EÅectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the Chief Executive OÇcer and
Chief Financial OÇcer, the Company conducted an evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures, as such
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term is deÑned in Rule 13a-15(e) of the Exchange Act. Based on this evaluation, the Chief Executive OÇcer
and Chief Financial OÇcer concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures were eÅective
as of the end of the period covered by this annual report.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
Ñnancial reporting, as such term is deÑned in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Under the supervision and with
the participation of the Company's management, including the Chief Executive OÇcer and Chief Financial
OÇcer, the Company conducted an evaluation of the eÅectiveness of internal control over Ñnancial reporting
as of December 31, 2005 based on the framework in ""Internal Control Ì Integrated Framework'' issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on the Company's
evaluation under the framework in ""Internal Control Ì Integrated Framework'', management concluded that
internal control over Ñnancial reporting was eÅective as of December 31, 2005.

The Company's assessment of eÅectiveness of internal control over Ñnancial reporting as of December 31,
2005 has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting Ñrm, as stated in
their attestation report which is included elsewhere herein.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in the Company's internal controls over Ñnancial reporting during the fourth quarter of
2005 that materially aÅected, or are reasonably likely to materially aÅect, the Company's internal control over
Ñnancial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive OÇcers of the Registrant

The Company will Ñle the 2006 Proxy Statement pursuant to Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act prior to
April 30, 2006. Except for the information set forth below concerning our Executive OÇcers, the information
required by this item is incorporated by reference from the 2006 Proxy Statement.

26



EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Name Age Position

John M. Stropki, Jr. 55 Chairman of the Board since October 13, 2004; director since 1998; Chief
Executive OÇcer and President since June 3, 2004; Chief Operating OÇcer
from May 1, 2003 to June 3, 2004; Executive Vice President from 1995-
June 3, 2004; President North America 1996-2003.

Vincent K. Petrella 45 Senior Vice President, Chief Financial OÇcer and Treasurer since
October 7, 2005; Vice President, Chief Financial OÇcer and Treasurer from
February 4, 2004 to October 7, 2005 and Vice President, Corporate
Controller 2001-2003.

Frederick G. Stueber 52 Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary since 1996.

James E. Schilling 69 Senior Vice President, Corporate Development since 1999; Director,
Business Development since 1998; prior thereto, General Manager,
Strategic Management of CBS Corporation (Westinghouse Electric Corp.
prior to 1997) from 1993-1998.

George D. Blankenship 43 Senior Vice President, Global Engineering since October 7, 2005; Vice
President, Global Engineering from May 5, 2005 to October 7, 2005; Senior
Vice President, U.S. Operations of The Lincoln Electric Company since
October 7, 2005; Vice President, Cleveland Operations of The Lincoln
Electric Company from June 6, 2005 to October 7, 2005; Vice President,
Engineering and Quality Assurance of The Lincoln Electric Company from
2000 to June 6, 2005.

Gretchen A. Farrell 43 Vice President, Human Resources since May 5, 2005; Vice President,
Human Resources of The Lincoln Electric Company since March 1, 2003;
Director, Compensation and BeneÑts of The Lincoln Electric Company
1997-2003.

The Company has been advised that there is no arrangement or understanding among any one of the oÇcers
listed and any other persons pursuant to which he was elected as an oÇcer. The executive oÇcers serve at the
pleasure of the Board of Directors.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the 2006 Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneÑcial Owners and Management

Except for the information set forth below regarding the Company's equity plans, the information required by
this item is incorporated by reference from the 2006 Proxy Statement.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of Securities
Remaining Available for
Future Issuance Under

Number of Securities Equity Compensation
to be Issued Upon Weighted-average Plans (Excluding

Exercise of Exercise Price of Securities ReÖected in
Outstanding Options Outstanding Options Column (a))

Plan Category (a) (b) (c)

Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders 2,071,325 $28.54 1,048,694

Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders Ì Ì Ì

Total 2,071,325 $28.54 1,048,694

For further information on the Company's equity compensation plans see ""Note A Ì SigniÑcant Accounting
Policies'' and ""Note E Ì Stock Plans'' to the Company's Ñnancial statements included in Item 8.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the 2006 Proxy Statement.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the 2006 Proxy Statement.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a)(1) Financial Statements

The following consolidated Ñnancial statements of the Company are included in a separate section of this
report following the signature page and certiÑcations:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Consolidated Balance Sheets Ó December 31, 2005 and 2004
Consolidated Statements of Income Ó Years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity Ó Years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Ó Years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules

The following consolidated Ñnancial statement schedule of the Company is included in a separate section
of this report following the signature page:

Schedule II Ó Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

All other schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulation of the Securities
and Exchange Commission are not required under the related instructions or are inapplicable, and
therefore, have been omitted.
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(a)(3) Exhibits

Exhibit No. Description

3(a) Restated Articles of Incorporation of Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. (Ñled as Annex B to
Form S-4 of Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc., Registration No. 333-50435, Ñled on April 17,
1998, and incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof).

3(b) Amended Code of Regulations of Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. (Ñled as Exhibit 3(b) to
Form 10-Q of Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. for the three months ended March 31, 2000, SEC
File No. 0-1402 and incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof).

10(a) Credit Agreement dated December 17, 2004 among Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc., The
Lincoln Electric Company, Lincoln Electric International Holding Company, Harris CaloriÑc,
Inc., Lincoln Global, Inc., the Ñnancial institutions listed in Annex A thereof, and KeyBank
National Association, as Letter of Credit Issuer and Administrative Agent (Ñled as Exhibit 10.1
to Form 8-K of Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. Ñled on December 22, 2004, SEC File No. 0-
1402 and incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof).

10(b) Note Purchase Agreement dated March 12, 2002 between Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. and
The Lincoln Electric Company and the Purchasers listed in Schedule A thereof (Ñled as
Exhibit 10(q) to Form 10-Q of Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. for the three months ended
March 31, 2002, SEC File No. 0-1402 and incorporated herein by reference and made a part
hereof).

10(c) Amended and Restated Note Purchase and Private Shelf Agreement between Lincoln Electric
Holdings, Inc., The Lincoln Electric Company and The Prudential Insurance Company of
America dated as of April 30, 2002 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(v) to Form 10-Q of Lincoln Electric
Holdings, Inc. for the three months ended June 30, 2002, SEC File No. 0-1402 and
incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof).

10(d) Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. 1998 Stock Plan (as amended, restated and renamed as of
May 1, 2003) (Ñled as Appendix B to the Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. Proxy Statement
dated March 31, 2003, SEC File No. 0-1402 and incorporated herein by reference and made a
part hereof).

10(e) The Lincoln Electric Company 1988 Incentive Equity Plan (Ñled as Exhibit 28 to the Form S-8
Registration Statement of The Lincoln Electric Company, SEC File No. 33-25209 and
incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof) as adopted and amended by Lincoln
Electric Holdings, Inc. pursuant to an Instrument of Adoption and Amendment dated
December 29, 1998 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(d) to Form 10-K of Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. for
the year ended December 31, 1998, SEC File No. 0-1402 and incorporated herein by reference
and made a part hereof).

10(f) Form of IndemniÑcation Agreement (Ñled as Exhibit A to The Lincoln Electric Company 1987
Proxy Statement, SEC File No. 0-1402, and incorporated herein by reference and made a part
hereof).

10(g) Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (Amended and
Restated as of March 1, 2002), including Amendment Nos. 1 and 2 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(g) to
Form 10-K of Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2003, SEC File
No. 0-1402 and incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof).

10(h) Amendment No. 3 to the Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement
Plan (Amended and Restated as of March 1, 2002) (Ñled as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K of
Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. Ñled on February 1, 2005, SEC File No. 0-1402 and
incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof).
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Exhibit No. Description

10(i) Amendment No. 4 to the Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement
Plan (Amended and Restated as of March 1, 2002) (Ñled as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K of
Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. Ñled on February 18, 2005, SEC File No. 0-1402 and
incorporated by reference and made a part hereof).

10(j) Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan for Executives (Amended and
Restated as of January 1, 2004) (Ñled as Exhibit 10(h) to Form 10-K of Lincoln Electric
Holdings, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2003, SEC File No. 0-1402 and incorporated
herein by reference and made a part hereof).

10(k) Amendment No. 1 to the Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan for
Executives (Amended and Restated as of January 1, 2004) (Ñled as Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K
of Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. Ñled on February 1, 2005, SEC File No. 0-1402 and
incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof).

10(l) Instrument of Termination of the Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan
for Executives (Ñled as Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K of Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. Ñled on
January 4, 2006, SEC File No. 0-1402 and incorporated herein by reference and made a part
hereof).

10(m) Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan for Certain Retention Agreements
and Other Contractual Arrangements (Amended and Restated as of January 1, 2004) (Ñled as
Exhibit  10(i) to Form 10-K of Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2003, SEC File No. 0-1402 and incorporated herein by reference and made a part
hereof).

10(n) Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. Non-Employee Directors' Deferred Compensation Plan
(Amended and Restated as of January 1, 2004) Ñled as Exhibit 10(m) to Form 10-K of
Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2004, SEC File No. 0-1402
and incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof).

10(o) Amendment No. 1 to the Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. Non-Employee Directors' Deferred
Compensation Plan (Amended and Restated as of January 1, 2004) (Ñled as Exhibit 10.3 to
Form 8-K of Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. Ñled on February 1, 2005, SEC File No. 0-1402
and incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof).

10(p) Amendment No. 2 to the Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc. Non-Employee Director's Deferred
Compensation Plan (Amended and Restated as of January 1, 2004) (Ñled as Exhibit 10.1 to
Form 8-K of Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. Ñled on December 5, 2005, SEC File No. 0-1402
and incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof).

10(q) Description of Management Incentive Plan (Ñled as Exhibit 10(e) to Form 10-K of The
Lincoln Electric Company for the year ended December 31, 1995, SEC File No. 0-1402 and
incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof).

10(r) Description of Long-Term Performance Plan (Ñled as Exhibit 10(f) to Form 10-K of The
Lincoln Electric Company for the year ended December 31, 1997, SEC File No. 0-1402 and
incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof).

10(s) Summary of Employment Agreements (Ñled as Exhibit 10(l) to Form 10-K of Lincoln Electric
Holdings, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2003, SEC File No. 0-1402 and incorporated
herein by reference and made a part hereof).

10(t) Form of Severance Agreement (as entered into by the Company and the following executive
oÇcers: Messrs. Stropki and Stueber) (Ñled as Exhibit 10 to Form 10-Q of Lincoln Electric
Holdings, Inc. for the nine months ended December 31, 1998, SEC File No. 0-1402 and
incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof).
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Exhibit No. Description

10(u) Form of Amendment 1 to Severance Agreement (as entered into by the Company and the
following executive oÇcers: Messrs. Stropki and Stueber) (Ñled as Exhibit 10(o) to Form 10-K
of Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 1999, SEC File No. 0-1402
and incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof).

10(v) Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors (Ñled as Exhibit 10(p) to Form 10-Q of
Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. for the three months ended March 31, 2000, SEC File
No. 0-1402 and incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof).

10(w) Summary of Cash Long-term Incentive Plan, as amended (Ñled as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K of
Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. Ñled on April 6, 2005, Securities and Exchange Commission
File No. 0-1402 and incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof).

10(x) Letter Agreement between John M. Stropki, Jr. and Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. dated
October 12, 2004 (Ñled as Exhibit  10.1 to Form 8-K of Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. Ñled on
October 18, 2004, SEC File No. 0-1402 and incorporated herein by reference and made a part
hereof).

10(y) 2005 Deferred Compensation Plan for Executives dated December 30, 2004 (Ñled as Ex-
hibit 10.4 to Form 8-K of Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. Ñled on February 1, 2005, SEC File
No. 0-1402 and incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof).

21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

24 Powers of Attorney.

31.1 CertiÑcation by the President and Chief Executive OÇcer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

31.2 CertiÑcation by the Senior Vice President, Chief Financial OÇcer and Treasurer pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

32.1 CertiÑcations pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

(c) None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS, INC.

(Registrant)

By: /s/ VINCENT K. PETRELLA

Vincent K. Petrella, Senior Vice President,
Chief Financial OÇcer and Treasurer
(principal Ñnancial and accounting oÇcer)
February 24, 2006
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

/s/ JOHN M. STROPKI, JR. /s/ VINCENT K. PETRELLA

John M. Stropki, Jr., Chairman of the Vincent K. Petrella,
Board, President and Chief Executive Senior Vice President, Chief Financial OÇcer and
OÇcer (principal executive oÇcer) Treasurer (principal financial and accounting officer)
February 24, 2006 February 24, 2006

/s/ VINCENT K. PETRELLA /s/ VINCENT K. PETRELLA

Vincent K. Petrella as Vincent K. Petrella as
Attorney-in-fact for Attorney-in-fact for
/s/ HAROLD ADAMS /s/ DAVID H. GUNNING

Harold Adams, Director David H. Gunning, Director
February 24, 2006 February 24, 2006

/s/ VINCENT K. PETRELLA /s/ VINCENT K. PETRELLA

Vincent K. Petrella as Vincent K. Petrella as
Attorney-in-fact for Attorney-in-fact for
/s/ RANKO CUCUZ /s/ KATHRYN JO LINCOLN

Ranko Cucuz, Director Kathryn Jo Lincoln, Director
February 24, 2006 February 24, 2006

/s/ VINCENT K. PETRELLA /s/ VINCENT K. PETRELLA

Vincent K. Petrella as Vincent K. Petrella as
Attorney-in-fact for Attorney-in-fact for
/s/ ROBERT J. KNOLL /s/ HELLENE S. RUNTAGH

Robert J. Knoll, Director Hellene S. Runtagh, Director
February 24, 2006 February 24, 2006

/s/ VINCENT K. PETRELLA /s/ VINCENT K. PETRELLA

Vincent K. Petrella as Vincent K. Petrella as
Attorney-in-fact for Attorney-in-fact for
/s/ G. RUSSELL LINCOLN /s/ GEORGE H. WALLS, JR.

G. Russell Lincoln, Director George H. Walls, Jr., Director
February 24, 2006 February 24, 2006

33



®THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK©



ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

ITEM 8, ITEM 15(a)(1) AND (2)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

CERTAIN EXHIBITS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of income,
shareholders' equity, and cash Öows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2005. Our
audits also included the Ñnancial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15 (a)(2). These Ñnancial
statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these Ñnancial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the Ñnancial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the Ñnancial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and signiÑcant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall Ñnancial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated Ñnancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated Ñnancial position of Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2005
and 2004, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash Öows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2005, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in
our opinion, the related Ñnancial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic Ñnancial
statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the eÅectiveness of Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc.'s internal control over Ñnancial reporting
as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control Ó Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 16,
2006 expressed an unqualiÑed opinion thereon.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Cleveland, Ohio
February 16, 2006
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc.

We have audited management's assessment, included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting in Item 9A, that Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries
maintained eÅective internal control over Ñnancial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria
established in Internal Control Ó Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries'
management is responsible for maintaining eÅective internal control over Ñnancial reporting and for its
assessment of the eÅectiveness of internal control over Ñnancial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on management's assessment and an opinion on the eÅectiveness of the company's internal control
over Ñnancial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether eÅective internal control over Ñnancial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over Ñnancial reporting, evaluating
management's assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating eÅectiveness of internal control,
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over Ñnancial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of Ñnancial reporting and the preparation of Ñnancial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over Ñnancial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reÖect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ñnancial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material eÅect on the Ñnancial
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over Ñnancial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of eÅectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management's assessment that Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained
eÅective internal control over Ñnancial reporting as of December 31, 2005, is fairly stated, in all material
respects, based on the COSO criteria. Also, in our opinion, Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries
maintained, in all material respects, eÅective internal control over Ñnancial reporting as of December 31, 2005,
based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders' equity and
cash Öows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2005 and our report dated
February 16, 2006 expressed an unqualiÑed opinion thereon.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Cleveland, Ohio
February 16, 2006
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LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31

2005 2004

(In thousands of dollars)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 108,007 $ 92,819
Marketable securities Ì 50,500
Accounts receivable (less allowance for doubtful accounts of $7,583 in 2005;

$9,295 in 2004) 242,093 219,496
Inventories

Raw materials 80,047 94,743
In-process 33,707 25,082
Finished goods 161,991 116,450

275,745 236,275
Deferred income taxes 9,069 3,794
Other current assets 41,720 34,716

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 676,634 637,600

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Land 23,034 18,034
Buildings 196,639 184,008
Machinery and equipment 536,834 553,203

756,507 755,245
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization 415,974 439,129

340,533 316,116

OTHER ASSETS
Prepaid pension costs 1,956 3,585
Equity investments in aÇliates 39,673 36,863
Intangibles, net 39,232 12,623
Goodwill 25,596 15,849
Deferred income taxes Ì 1,084
Long-term investments 27,905 26,884
Other 9,632 8,560

143,994 105,448

TOTAL ASSETS $1,161,161 $1,059,164
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LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31

2005 2004

(In thousands of dollars,
except per share data)

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Amounts due banks $ 7,143 $ 2,561
Trade accounts payable 121,917 111,154
Accrued employee compensation and beneÑts 40,658 37,036
Accrued expenses 17,597 15,953
Taxes, including income taxes 38,342 35,789
Accrued pensions, current 28,662 21,163
Dividends payable 8,014 7,498
Other current liabilities 30,289 30,992
Current portion of long-term debt 1,020 882

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 293,642 263,028

Long-term debt, less current portion 157,853 163,931

Accrued pensions 14,786 14,457

Deferred income taxes 17,752 18,227

Other long-term liabilities 24,834 22,244

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Preferred shares, without par value Ó at stated capital amount:

Authorized Ó 5,000,000 shares in 2005 and 2004;
Issued and Outstanding Ó none Ì Ì

Common shares, without par value Ó at stated capital amount:
Authorized Ó 120,000,000 shares in 2005 and 2004;
Issued Ó 49,282,306 shares in 2005 and 2004;
Outstanding Ó 42,181,021 shares at December 31, 2005 and
41,646,657 shares at December 31, 2004 4,928 4,928

Additional paid-in capital 125,925 117,593
Retained earnings 764,748 673,010
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (91,276) (58,678)
Treasury shares, at cost Ì 7,101,285 shares as of December 31, 2005 and

7,635,649 shares as of December 31, 2004 (152,031) (159,576)

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 652,294 577,277

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY $1,161,161 $1,059,164

See notes to these consolidated Ñnancial statements.

F-5



LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year Ended December 31

2005 2004 2003

(In thousands of dollars,
except per share data)

Net sales $1,601,190 $1,333,675 $1,040,589

Cost of goods sold 1,164,275 971,317 759,924

Gross proÑt 436,915 362,358 280,665

Selling, general & administrative expenses 285,309 256,616 210,703

Rationalization charges 1,761 2,440 1,743

Operating income 149,845 103,302 68,219

Other income (expense):
Interest income 4,000 3,071 3,187
Equity earnings in aÇliates 3,312 4,005 2,923
Other income 4,689 3,542 3,022
Interest expense (7,947) (6,143) (8,124)

Total other income 4,054 4,475 1,008

Income before income taxes 153,899 107,777 69,227

Income taxes 31,593 27,181 14,685

Net income $ 122,306 $ 80,596 $ 54,542

Per share amounts:
Basic earnings per share $ 2.93 $ 1.96 $ 1.32

Diluted earnings per share $ 2.90 $ 1.94 $ 1.31

Cash dividends declared per share $ 0.73 $ 0.69 $ 0.64

See notes to these consolidated Ñnancial statements.
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LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Accumulated
Other

Common Additional Comprehensive
Shares Common Paid-In Retained Income Treasury

Outstanding Stock Capital Earnings (Loss) Shares Total

(In thousands)

Balance January 1, 2003 42,087 $4,928 $106,237 $597,495 $(132,350) $(147,157) $429,153

Comprehensive income
Net income 54,542 54,542
Minimum pension liability

adjustment, net of tax of $12,204 18,622 18,622
Unrealized gain on derivatives

designated and qualiÑed as cash
Öow hedges, net of tax of $(211) 496 496

Currency translation adjustment 35,955 35,955

Total comprehensive income 109,615

Cash dividends declared Ì $0.64 per
share (26,443) (26,443)

Issuance of shares under beneÑt plans 435 1,480 (1,696) 8,343 8,127

Purchase of shares for treasury (1,917) (41,944) (41,944)

Balance December 31, 2003 40,605 4,928 107,717 623,898 (77,277) (180,758) 478,508

Comprehensive income
Net income 80,596 80,596
Minimum pension liability

adjustment, net of tax of $1,243 (532) (532)
Unrealized loss on derivatives

designated and qualiÑed as cash
Öow hedges, net of tax of $28 (714) (714)

Currency translation adjustment 19,845 19,845

Total comprehensive income 99,195

Cash dividends declared Ì $0.69 per
share (28,490) (28,490)

Issuance of shares under beneÑt plans 1,196 9,876 (2,994) 25,550 32,432

Purchase of shares for treasury (154) (4,368) (4,368)

Balance December 31, 2004 41,647 4,928 117,593 673,010 (58,678) (159,576) 577,277

Comprehensive income
Net income 122,306 122,306
Minimum pension liability

adjustment, net of tax of $9,392 (15,034) (15,034)
Unrealized loss on derivatives

designated and qualiÑed as cash
Öow hedges, net of tax of $(78) (605) (605)

Currency translation adjustment (16,959) (16,959)

Total comprehensive income 89,708

Cash dividends declared Ó $0.73 per
share (30,568) (30,568)

Issuance of shares under beneÑt plans 964 8,332 20,348 28,680

Purchase of shares for treasury (430) (12,803) (12,803)

Balance December 31, 2005 42,181 $4,928 $125,925 $764,748 $ (91,276) $(152,031) $652,294

See notes to these consolidated Ñnancial statements.
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LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31

2005 2004 2003

(In thousands of dollars)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income $122,306 $80,596 $ 54,542
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by

operating activities:
Rationalization charges 1,761 2,440 1,743
Depreciation and amortization 43,982 40,182 37,650
Equity earnings of aÇliates, net (3,312) (3,001) (2,923)
Deferred income taxes (1,895) 9,473 14,461
Stock-based compensation 3,527 4,145 264
Amortization of terminated interest rate swaps (2,117) (2,117) (1,311)
Tax beneÑt from the exercise of stock options 3,898 5,342 1,426
Other non-cash items, net 1,993 3,789 (357)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities net of eÅects from

acquisitions:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (17,274) (35,258) 1,115
(Increase) decrease in inventories (32,133) (47,779) 11,072
Increase in other current assets (8,314) (6,632) (3,087)
Increase in accounts payable 14,141 3,916 7,229
Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities 10,989 19,742 (8,783)
Contributions to pension plans (31,500) (33,153) (43,308)
Increase in accrued pensions 16,717 7,479 29,628
Net change in other long-term assets and liabilities (5,745) 2,096 (3,674)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 117,024 51,260 95,687

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures (50,415) (56,441) (34,840)
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired (78,174) (11,815) (3,693)
Proceeds from sale of Ñxed assets 3,675 3,588 2,739
Sales of marketable securities 70,441 15,178 120,123
Purchases of marketable securities (15,000) (9,000) (71,280)

NET CASH (USED) PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES (69,473) (58,490) 13,049

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 903 27 83
Payments on short-term borrowings (262) (123) (83)
Amounts due banks, net 8,313 (2,349) (2,959)
Proceeds from termination of interest rate swaps Ì Ì 10,613
Payments on long-term borrowings (15,471) (5,178) (15,086)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 21,230 22,555 6,729
Purchase of shares for treasury (12,803) (4,368) (41,944)
Cash dividends paid to shareholders (30,037) (27,485) (26,688)

NET CASH USED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES (28,127) (16,921) (69,335)

EÅect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (4,236) 3,085 3,683

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 15,188 (21,066) 43,084

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 92,819 113,885 70,801

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $108,007 $92,819 $113,885

See notes to these consolidated Ñnancial statements.
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LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands of dollars except share and per share data)
December 31, 2005

NOTE A Ó SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated Ñnancial statements include the accounts of Lincoln Electric
Holdings, Inc., its wholly-owned and majority-owned subsidiaries and all non-majority owned entities for
which it has a controlling interest (the ""Company'') after elimination of all intercompany accounts,
transactions and proÑts. Minority ownership interest in consolidated subsidiaries, which is not material, is
recorded in Other long-term liabilities.

Cash Equivalents: The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or
less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable: The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses from
the failure of its customers to make required payments for products delivered. The Company estimates this
allowance based on knowledge of the Ñnancial condition of customers, review of historical receivables and
reserve trends and other pertinent information. If the Ñnancial condition of customers deteriorates or an
unfavorable trend in receivable collections is experienced in the future, additional allowances may be required.
Historically, the Company's reserves have approximated actual experience.

Inventories: Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. For domestic inventories, cost is determined
principally by the last-in, Ñrst-out (LIFO) method, and for non-U.S. inventories, cost is determined by the
Ñrst-in, Ñrst-out (FIFO) method. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, approximately 47% of total inventories
were valued using the LIFO method. The excess of current cost over LIFO cost amounted to $62,900 at
December 31, 2005 and $61,442 at December 31, 2004.

Reserves are maintained for estimated obsolescence or excess inventory equal to the diÅerence between the
cost of inventory and the estimated market value based upon assumptions about future demand and market
conditions. Historically, the Company's reserves have approximated actual experience.

Equity Investments: Investments in businesses in which the Company does not have a controlling interest and
holds between a 20% and 50% ownership interest are accounted for using the equity method of accounting on a
one month-lag basis. The Company's 50% ownership interest in equity investments include investments in
Turkey and Chile. In addition, the Company holds a 35% interest in a Taiwanese joint venture and a 21%
interest in an investment in the People's Republic of China. The amount of retained earnings that represents
undistributed earnings of 50% or less owned equity investments was $10,726 at December 31, 2005 and $7,414
at December 31, 2004.

Property, Plant and Equipment: Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost and include improvements
which signiÑcantly increase capacities or extend the useful lives of existing plant and equipment. Depreciation
and amortization are computed by both accelerated and straight-line methods over useful lives ranging from 3
to 20 years for machinery, tools and equipment, and up to 50 years for buildings. Net gains or losses related to
asset dispositions are recognized in earnings in the period in which dispositions occur. The following table
summarizes assets held under capital leases and included in property, plant and equipment:

2005 2004

Buildings $5,102 $5,873
Machinery and equipment 318 100
Less: Accumulated depreciation (863) (649)

Net capital leases $4,557 $5,324

Routine maintenance, repairs and replacements are expensed as incurred. The Company capitalizes interest
cost associated with construction in progress.
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LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ó (Continued)

NOTE A Ó SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill and Intangibles: The Company performs an annual impairment test of goodwill in the fourth quarter
of each year. Goodwill is tested for impairment using models developed by the Company which incorporate
estimates of future cash Öows, allocations of certain assets and cash Öows among reporting units, future growth
rates, established business valuation multiples, and management judgments regarding the applicable discount
rates to value those estimated cash Öows. The Company performed its annual impairment test in the fourth
quarters of 2005, 2004 and 2003 and determined there was no impairment of goodwill. In addition, goodwill is
tested as necessary if changes in circumstances or the occurrence of events indicate potential impairment.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by segment for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004
are as follows:

North Other
America Europe Countries Consolidated

Balance as of January 1, 2004 $ Ì $4,531 $ Ì $ 4,531
Additions and adjustments (701) 11,281 10,580
Foreign exchange eÅect Ì 738 Ì 738

Balance as of January 1, 2005 Ì 4,568 11,281 15,849
Additions and adjustments 9,379 519 77 9,975
Foreign exchange eÅect 96 (493) 169 (228)

Balance as of December 31, 2005 $9,475 $4,594 $11,527 $25,596

Additions to goodwill for 2005 primarily reÖect goodwill recorded in the acquisition of J.W. Harris (See
Note K).

Gross intangible assets other than goodwill by asset class as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

2005 2004

Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization

Trademarks and trade names $18,284 $ 5,509 $ 8,817 $ 5,754
Customer relationships 10,361 169 Ì Ì
Patents 4,743 268 976 222
Other 19,426 7,636 16,923 8,117

Total $52,814 $13,582 $26,716 $14,093

Intangible assets, other than goodwill are recorded at cost. Intangibles other than goodwill that do not have
indeÑnite lives are amortized on a straight-line method over the legal or estimated life. Included in the above
table are intangible assets with indeÑnite lives totaling $9,977 and $2,719 at December 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. Intangibles with indeÑnite lives are not amortized and are tested annually for impairment.

The increase in gross intangible assets other than goodwill is primarily due to trademarks, trade names,
customer relationships, patents and other proprietary technology totaling $18,300 recorded in the acquisition
of J.W. Harris. The weighted-average amortization period for trademarks and trade names, customer
relationships, patents and other intangibles is 11, 22, 19 and 11 years, respectively. Aggregate amortization
expense was $1,004, $1,054 and $1,097 for 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Estimated annual expense for
intangible assets subject to amortization for each of the next Ñve years is $1,866 in 2006, $1,531 in 2007,
$1,484 in 2008 and 2009, and $1,369 in 2010.

Long-lived Assets: In accordance with SFAS No. 144, ""Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets,'' the Company periodically evaluates whether current facts or circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of its depreciable long-lived assets to be held and used may not be recoverable. If such
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LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ó (Continued)

NOTE A Ó SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

circumstances are determined to exist, an estimate of undiscounted future cash Öows produced by the long-
lived asset, or the appropriate grouping of assets, is compared to the carrying value to determine whether an
impairment exists. If an asset is determined to be impaired, the loss is measured based on quoted market
prices in active markets, if available. If quoted market prices are not available, the estimate of fair value is
based on various valuation techniques, including the discounted value of estimated future cash Öows and
established business valuation multiples.

Product Warranties: The Company accrues for product warranty claims based on historical experience and
the expected material and labor costs to provide warranty service. The accrual for product warranty claims is
included in the Other current liabilities line item of the balance sheet. Warranty accruals have increased as a
result of the eÅect of higher sales levels. The changes in the carrying amount of product warranty accruals for
the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

Balance at Charged to Balance
Beginning Costs and at End of
of Period Expenses Deductions Period

Year ended December 31, 2005 $6,800 $8,274 $(7,346) $7,728
Year ended December 31, 2004 $5,893 $7,403 $(6,496) $6,800

Warranty expense was 0.5% of sales for 2005 and 0.6% of sales for 2004.

Revenue Recognition: The Company recognizes revenue when the risks and rewards of ownership and title to
the product have transferred to the customer. Revenue recognition generally occurs at the point of shipment;
however in certain instances as shipping terms dictate, revenue is recognized at the point of destination.

Distribution Costs: Distribution costs, including warehousing and freight related to product shipments, is
included in Cost of goods sold.

Stock-Based Compensation: EÅective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted the fair value method of
recording stock options contained in SFAS No. 123 ""Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.'' All
employee stock option grants beginning January 1, 2003 are expensed over the stock option vesting period
based on the fair value at the date the options are granted. The Company elected to expense stock options
using the prospective method prescribed in SFAS No. 148, ""Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation Ó
Transition and Disclosure.'' The prospective method requires expense to be recognized for new grants or
modiÑcations issued beginning in the year of adoption. No expense was recognized in any year for options
issued prior to adoption. The adoption of SFAS No. 148 did not have a material impact on the Ñnancial
statements of the Company in 2003. The eÅect of all stock-based awards decreased earnings per share by
approximately $0.05 and $0.06 in 2005 and 2004, respectively. Stock-based awards were immaterial to
earnings per share in 2003.

Prior to 2003, the Company applied the intrinsic value method permitted under SFAS No. 123, as deÑned in
Accounting Principles Board (""APB'') Opinion No. 25, ""Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees'' and
related interpretations, in accounting for the Company's stock option plans. Accordingly, no compensation
cost was recognized in years prior to adoption.

SFAS No. 123, as amended by SFAS No. 148, requires pro forma disclosure of net income and earnings per
share when applying the fair value method of valuing stock-based compensation. The following table sets forth
the pro forma disclosure of net income and earnings per share as if compensation expense had been recognized
for the fair value of options granted prior to January 1, 2003. For purposes of this pro forma disclosure, the
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LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ó (Continued)

NOTE A Ó SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

estimated fair value of the options granted prior to January 1, 2003 was determined using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model and is amortized ratably over the vesting periods (see Note E).

Year Ended December 31

2005 2004 2003

Net income, as reported $122,306 $80,596 $54,542
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in

reported net income, net of related tax eÅects 2,178 2,529 160
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense

determined under fair value based method for all awards
granted, net of related tax eÅects (3,000) (4,433) (3,146)

Pro forma net income $121,484 $78,692 $51,556

Earnings per share:
Basic, as reported $ 2.93 $ 1.96 $ 1.32
Basic, pro forma $ 2.91 $ 1.91 $ 1.25
Diluted, as reported $ 2.90 $ 1.94 $ 1.31
Diluted, pro forma $ 2.88 $ 1.89 $ 1.24

Weighted-average number of shares (in thousands):
Basic 41,813 41,189 41,386
Diluted 42,230 41,643 41,502

Translation of Foreign Currencies: Asset and liability accounts are translated into U.S. dollars using exchange
rates in eÅect at the date of the consolidated balance sheet; revenue and expense accounts are translated at
monthly exchange rates. Translation adjustments are reÖected as a component of Shareholders' equity. For
subsidiaries operating in highly inÖationary economies, both historical and current exchange rates are used in
translating balance sheet accounts, and translation adjustments are included in net income.

Foreign currency transaction losses are included in Selling, general & administrative expenses and were $1,411
in 2005, $1,514 in 2004 and $3,220 in 2003.

Financial Instruments: The Company uses forward exchange contracts to hedge exposure to exchange rate
Öuctuations on certain intercompany loans, purchase and sales transactions and other intercompany commit-
ments. Contracts are written on a short-term basis and are not held for trading or speculative purposes. The
Company recognizes derivative instruments as either assets or liabilities in the balance sheets at fair value.
The accounting for changes in the fair value of derivative instruments depends on whether it has been
designated and qualiÑes as part of a hedging relationship and further, on the type of hedging relationship.

For derivative instruments that qualify as a fair value hedge (i.e., hedging the exposure to changes in the fair
value of an asset or a liability), the gain or loss on the derivative instrument, as well as the oÅsetting loss or
gain on the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are recognized in earnings. For derivative instruments
that qualify as a cash Öow hedge (i.e., hedging the exposure to variability in expected future cash Öows), the
eÅective portion of the gain or loss on the derivative instrument is reported as a component of Accumulated
other comprehensive income with oÅsetting amounts recorded as Other current assets or Other current
liabilities. At settlement, the realized gain or loss is reÖected in earnings in the same period or periods during
which the hedged transaction aÅects earnings. Any remaining gain or loss on the derivative instrument is
recognized in earnings. The Company does not hedge its net investments in foreign subsidiaries. For derivative
instruments not designated as hedges, the gain or loss from changes in their fair values is recognized in
earnings.

Advertising Costs: Advertising costs are included in Selling, general & administrative expenses, charged to
expense when incurred and totaled $13,453 in 2005, $10,988 in 2004 and $8,910 in 2003.
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LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ó (Continued)

NOTE A Ó SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Research and Development: Research and development costs are expensed as incurred, and totaled $21,594
in 2005, $20,016 in 2004 and $19,175 in 2003.

Estimates: The preparation of Ñnancial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions in certain circumstances that aÅect the
amounts reported in the accompanying consolidated Ñnancial statements and notes. Actual results could diÅer
from these estimates.

ReclassiÑcation: Certain reclassiÑcations have been made to prior year Ñnancial statements to conform to
current year classiÑcations.

New Accounting Pronouncements: In June 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (""FASB'')
issued StaÅ Position No. 143-1 ""Accounting for Electronic Equipment Waste Obligations'' (""FSP 143-1''),
which provides guidance on the accounting for obligations associated with the Directive on Waste Electrical
and Electronic Equipment (the ""WEEE Directive''), which was adopted by the European Union. FSP 143-1
provides guidance on accounting for the eÅects of the WEEE Directive with respect to historical waste and
waste associated with products on the market on or before August 13, 2005. FSP 143-1 requires commercial
users to account for their WEEE obligation as an asset retirement liability in accordance with FASB
Statement No. 143, ""Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.'' FSP 143-1 was required to be applied to
the later of the Ñrst reporting period ending after June 8, 2005 or the date of the adoption of the WEEE
Directive into law by the applicable European Union member country. The WEEE Directive has been
adopted into law by the majority of European Union member countries in which the Company has signiÑcant
operations. The Company adopted the provisions of FSP 143-1 as it relates to these countries with no material
impact on its Ñnancial statements. The Company will apply the guidance of FSP 143-1 as it relates to the
remaining European Union member countries in which it operates when those countries have adopted the
WEEE Directive into law.

In March 2005, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 47 (""FIN 47'') ""Accounting for Conditional Asset
Retirement Obligations Ó an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143.'' This interpretation deÑnes the term
""conditional asset retirement obligation'' as used in FASB Statement No. 143, ""Accounting for Asset
Retirement Obligations,'' as a legal obligation to perform an asset retirement activity, in which the timing,
and/or method of settlement are conditional on a future event that may or may not be within the control of the
entity. FIN 47 requires that an obligation to perform an asset retirement activity is unconditional even though
uncertainty exists about the timing and/or method of settlement. FIN 47 also clariÑes when an entity would
have suÇcient information to reasonably estimate the fair value of an asset retirement. FIN 47 was eÅective
December 31, 2005. The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 47 with no material impact on its Ñnancial
statements.

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151 ""Inventory Costs Ó an amendment of ARB No. 43,
Chapter 4.'' This Statement amends the guidance in Accounting Research Bulletin No. 43 to require idle
facility expense, freight, handling costs, and wasted material (spoilage) be recognized as current-period
charges. In addition, SFAS No. 151 requires the allocation of Ñxed production overheads to the costs of
conversion be based on the normal capacity of production facilities. SFAS No. 151 is eÅective for inventory
costs incurred during Ñscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. The Company will adopt SFAS No. 151 on
January 1, 2006. The adoption of this standard will not have a material impact on the Company's Ñnancial
statements.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (Revised 2004), ""Share-Based Payment,'' which is a
revision of SFAS No. 123, ""Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.'' SFAS No. 123(R) supersedes APB
Opinion No. 25, ""Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.'' Generally, the approach in SFAS No. 123(R)
is similar to the approach described in SFAS 123. However, SFAS No. 123(R) requires all share-based
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LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ó (Continued)

NOTE A Ó SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the income statement
based on their fair values. Pro forma disclosure is no longer an alternative. SFAS No. 123(R) permits public
companies to adopt its requirements using one of two methods:

A ""modiÑed prospective'' method in which compensation cost is recognized beginning with the eÅective
date (a) based on the requirements of SFAS No. 123(R) for all share-based payments granted after the
eÅective date and (b) based on the requirements of SFAS No. 123 for all awards granted to employees
prior to the eÅective date of SFAS No. 123(R) that remain unvested on the eÅective date.

A ""modiÑed retrospective'' method which includes the requirements of the modiÑed prospective method
described above, but also permits entities to restate, based on the amounts previously recognized under
SFAS No. 123 for purposes of pro forma disclosures, either (a) all prior periods presented or (b) prior
interim periods of the year of adoption.

Under SFAS No. 123(R), public companies would have been required to implement the standard as of the
beginning of the Ñrst interim or annual period that begins after June 15, 2005. In April 2005, the Securities
and Exchange Commission adopted a rule amending the compliance dates of SFAS No. 123(R) to allow
companies to implement SFAS No. 123(R) at the beginning of their next Ñscal year, instead of the next
reporting period that begins after June 15, 2005. Early adoption was permitted in periods in which Ñnancial
statements have not yet been issued. The Company will adopt SFAS No. 123(R) on January 1, 2006 using
the modiÑed-prospective method. The adoption of the standard will not have a material impact on the
Company's Ñnancial statements as a result of the Company adopting fair value accounting under
SFAS No. 123 on January 1, 2003.

Bonus: Included in Selling, general & administrative expenses are the costs related to the Company's
discretionary employee bonus, net of hospitalization costs, of $62,899 in 2005, $46,454 in 2004 and $26,248 in
2003.

Other Income: Other income includes non-operating items of $3,061, $2,278 and $2,161 in 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectively. Other income also includes royalty income from the Company's joint venture investment in
Turkey of $1,628, $1,264 and $861 in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

NOTE B Ó EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share (dollars and shares in
thousands, except per share amounts).

Year Ended December 31

2005 2004 2003

Numerator:
Net income $122,306 $80,596 $54,542

Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per share Ó Weighted-average

shares outstanding 41,813 41,189 41,386
EÅect of dilutive securities Ó Employee stock options 417 454 116

Denominator for diluted earnings per share Ó Adjusted
weighted-average shares outstanding 42,230 41,643 41,502

Basic earnings per share $ 2.93 $ 1.96 $ 1.32
Diluted earnings per share $ 2.90 $ 1.94 $ 1.31

F-14



LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ó (Continued)

NOTE B Ó EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

Common stock issuable upon the exercise of employee stock options is excluded from the calculation of
diluted earnings per share when the calculation of option equivalent shares is anti-dilutive. The calculation of
diluted earnings per share for 2005, 2004 and 2003 excludes 572,749, 671,358 and 1,770,381 shares,
respectively.

NOTE C Ó SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

The Company's Board of Directors has authorized share repurchase programs for up to 15 million shares of
the Company's common stock. During 2005, the Company purchased 429,890 shares of its common stock on
the open market at an average cost of $29.78 per share. Through December 31, 2005, 10,241,673 shares have
been purchased under the share repurchase program at an average cost of $21.12 per share.

NOTE D Ó ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) are as follows:

Unrealized Gain
(Loss) on Total

Minimum Derivatives Accumulated
Pension Designated and Other
Liability Currency QualiÑed as Cash Comprehensive

Adjustment, Translation Flow Hedges, net (Loss)
net of tax Adjustment of tax Income

Balance January 1, 2003 $(81,432) $(50,898) $ (20) $(132,350)
Other comprehensive

income 18,622 35,955 496 55,073

Balance December 31, 2003 (62,810) (14,943) 476 (77,277)
Other comprehensive (loss)

income (532) 19,845 (714) 18,599

Balance December 31, 2004 (63,342) 4,902 (238) (58,678)
Other comprehensive loss (15,034) (16,959) (605) (32,598)

Balance December 31, 2005 $(78,376) $(12,057) $(843) $ (91,276)

NOTE E Ó STOCK PLANS

The 1998 Stock Plan (""Stock Plan''), as amended in May 2003, provides for the granting of options, tandem
appreciation rights (""TARs''), restricted shares and deferred shares up to an aggregate of 5,000,000 of the
Company's common shares.
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LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ó (Continued)

NOTE E Ó STOCK PLANS (continued)

The following table summarizes the activity for the three years ended December 31, 2005, under all Plans:

2005 2004 2003

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise

Options Price Options Price Options Price

Balance, beginning of
year 2,634,142 $24.38 3,310,876 $20.67 3,179,471 $19.34

Options, tandem
appreciation rights,
restricted and
deferred shares
granted 414,855 $39.65 524,750 $35.23 604,036 $23.33

Options exercised (964,254) $21.99 (1,194,366) $18.93 (435,220) $14.92
Options canceled (13,418) $32.19 (7,118) $22.32 (37,411) $21.94

Balance, end of year 2,071,325 $28.54 2,634,142 $24.38 3,310,876 $20.67

Exercisable at end of
year 1,271,155 $23.92 1,787,310 $21.46 2,148,182 $19.36

Options granted under both the Stock Plan and its predecessor, the 1988 Incentive Equity Plan are
outstanding for a term of ten years from the date of grant. The majority of the options and TARs granted
under both plans vest ratably over a period of three years from the grant date. The exercise prices of all options
were equal to the fair market value of the Company's common shares at the date of grant. As described under
Note A Ó ""Stock-Based Compensation,'' eÅective January 1, 2003, the Company elected to expense options
under SFAS No. 123. Options are expensed ratably over the vesting period. Prior to 2003, the Company
recorded stock-based compensation in accordance with the intrinsic value method established by APB
Opinion No. 25. Under the intrinsic value method, compensation expense is measured as the excess, if any, of
the market price at the date of grant over the exercise price of the options. Accordingly, no compensation
expense was recognized for stock options issued prior to 2003.

In estimating the fair value of options granted for the Stock Plan and the Incentive Equity Plan, the expected
option life is based on the Company's historical experience. The Company uses the Black-Scholes option
pricing model for estimating fair values of options. The weighted-average assumptions for the three years
ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 are as follows:

2005 2004 2003

Expected volatility 25.75% 27.80% 37.23%
Dividend yield 1.90% 2.04% 2.92%
Risk-free interest rate 4.38% 3.71% 3.20%
Expected option life 4.5 4.6 5.0
Weighted-average fair value of options granted during the year $ 9.57 $ 8.49 $ 6.83

Tandem appreciation rights are granted concurrently with options, and represent the right, exercisable by
surrender of the underlying option, to receive in cash, an amount equal to the increase in market value from
the grant price of the Company's common shares. TARs payable in cash require the recording of a liability
and related compensation expense to be measured by the diÅerence between the quoted market price of the
number of common shares covered by the grant and the option price per common share at grant date. Any
increases or decreases in the market price of the common shares between grant date and exercise date result in
changes to the Company's compensation expense. Compensation expense is accrued over the vesting period.

F-16



LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ó (Continued)

NOTE E Ó STOCK PLANS (continued)

In addition, changes in the market price of common shares after the vesting period, but prior to the exercise
date, require changes in compensation expense. During 2004, the Company modiÑed existing TARs by
eliminating the cash settlement feature. This modiÑcation required that the TARs be accounted for as equity
awards. The associated liability for compensation expense recognized prior to the date of modiÑcation of
$2,434 was reclassiÑed from Other non-current liabilities to Additional paid-in-capital. The unrecognized
compensation cost, equal to the diÅerence between the fair value of the TARs on the date of the modiÑcation
and compensation cost previously recognized, will be recognized over the remaining vesting period of the
TARs. TARs payable in common shares will be accounted for as stock options and the fair value method of
accounting under SFAS No. 123 will be utilized. Subsequent changes in share values will not aÅect
compensation expense. During 2004, 30,000 TARs were issued. There were no TARs issued during 2005.

Restricted shares and deferred shares require compensation expense to be measured by the quoted market
price on the grant date. Expense is recognized by allocating the aggregate fair value at grant date over the
vesting period. No expense is recognized for any shares ultimately forfeited because the recipients fail to meet
the vesting requirements. The Company issued 33,970 restricted shares at a market price of $39.93 per share
in 2005. There were no restricted shares issued in 2004, and no deferred shares were issued during 2005 or
2004.

The Company issued 964,254 shares of common stock from treasury upon exercise of employee stock options
during 2005.

The Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors (""Directors Stock Option Plan'') provides for the grant
of stock options for the purchase of up to an aggregate of 500,000 common shares. Options issued under this
Plan were 28,000 in 2005, 18,000 in 2004 and 34,000 in 2003.

At December 31, 2005, there were 1,048,694 common shares available for future grant under all plans, and the
weighted-average remaining contractual life of outstanding options was 7.5 years. The following table
summarizes information about stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2005:

Outstanding Exercisable

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Exercise Price Number Average Number Average Average
Range of Options Exercise Price of Options Exercise Price Remaining Life

$13 - $17 135,251 $13.56 135,251 $13.56 4.6
$17 - $21 107,550 $19.50 107,550 $19.50 3.8
$21 - $25 856,986 $22.92 750,892 $22.78 6.5
$25 - $29 42,000 $25.45 42,000 $25.45 7.4
$29 - $33 30,000 $31.90 10,000 $31.90 8.5
$33 - $37 487,183 $35.43 225,462 $35.43 8.9
Over $37 412,355 $39.89 Ì Ì 9.5

2,071,325 $28.54 1,271,155 $23.92

The 1995 Lincoln Stock Purchase Plan provides employees the ability to purchase open market shares on a
commission-free basis up to a limit of ten thousand dollars annually. Under this plan, 400,000 shares have
been authorized to be purchased. There were 2,256, 2,689 and 3,736 shares purchased in 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively.
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LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ó (Continued)

NOTE F Ó RATIONALIZATION CHARGES

In the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company committed to a plan to rationalize manufacturing operations (the
""Ireland Rationalization'') at Harris CaloriÑc Limited (""Harris Ireland''). In connection with the Ireland
Rationalization, the Company intends to transfer all manufacturing currently taking place at Harris Ireland to
a lower cost facility in Eastern Europe.

The Company expects to incur a charge of approximately $4,000 (pre-tax) associated with employee
severance costs, equipment relocation, employee retention and professional services. Approximately 64
employees will be impacted by the Ireland Rationalization.

Rationalization charges of $511 ($455 after-tax) were incurred in the fourth quarter of 2005. The remaining
charges will be incurred in 2006. Cash expenditures are expected to be paid throughout 2006 with the
expected completion of the Ireland Rationalization occurring in the fourth quarter of 2006. As of Decem-
ber 31, 2005, the Company has recorded a liability of $511 for charges related to these eÅorts.

In 2004, the Company committed to a plan to rationalize machine manufacturing (the ""French Rationaliza-
tion'') at Lincoln Electric France, S.A.S. (""LE France''). In connection with the French Rationalization, the
Company transferred machine manufacturing performed at LE France to other facilities. The Company
committed to the French Rationalization as a result of the region's decreased demand for locally-
manufactured machines. In connection with the French Rationalization, the Company incurred a charge of
$2,292 (pre-tax), of which $1,188 (pre-tax) was incurred in 2005. Employee severance costs associated with
the termination of approximately 40 of LE France's 179 employees were $2,123 (pre-tax), of which $1,087
(pre-tax) was incurred in 2005. Costs not relating to employee severance primarily included warehouse
relocation costs and professional fees. As of December 31, 2005, the Company has recorded a liability of $851
for charges related to the French Rationalization.

Also in 2004, the Company committed to a plan to rationalize sales and distribution at its operations in
Norway and Sweden (the ""Nordic Rationalization''). In connection with the Nordic Rationalization, the
Company consolidated the sales and distribution operations in Norway and Sweden into other facilities in
Europe to improve eÇciencies. In connection with the Nordic Rationalization, the Company incurred charges
of $1,398 (pre-tax). Employee severance costs associated with the termination of approximately 13 employees
were $651 (pre-tax), of which $62 (pre-tax) was incurred in 2005. The Company incurred $747 (pre-tax) in
2004 for costs not related to employee severance, which primarily include warehouse relocation costs. The
Company does not expect to incur any further charges related to the Nordic Rationalization. As of
December 31, 2005, the Company has recorded a liability of $313 for charges related to the Nordic
Rationalization.

During 2003, the Company recorded rationalization charges of $1,743 ($1,367 after-tax). The rationalization
charges include asset impairments and severance. Non-cash asset impairment charges of $900 (pre-tax)
related to property, plant and equipment at one of the Company's European subsidiaries where management
believed the carrying values were unrecoverable. Severance charges were $843 (pre-tax) primarily covering 57
U.S. employees. Severance charges were incurred to eliminate redundancies and improve organizational
eÇciency.
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NOTE G Ó SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM DEBT

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, debt consisted of the following:

2005 2004

Long-term debt
Senior Unsecured Notes due 2007, interest at 5.58% $ 41,328 $ 42,490
Senior Unsecured Notes due 2009, interest at 5.89% 32,354 33,103
Senior Unsecured Notes due 2012, interest at 6.36% 81,269 81,475
Capital leases due through 2012, interest at 2.15% to 5.52% (2.20% to

10.0% in 2004) 3,574 4,336
Interest rate swaps (2,964) 210
Other borrowings due through 2023, interest at 2.0% to 5.75% (2.0% to

4.0% in 2004) 3,312 3,199

158,873 164,813
Less current portion 1,020 882

Total long-term debt $157,853 $163,931

Short-term debt
Amounts due banks, interest at 10.35% (8.68% in 2004) 7,143 2,561
Current portion long-term debt 1,020 882

Total short-term debt 8,163 3,443

Total debt $166,016 $167,374

Senior Unsecured Notes

During March 2002, the Company issued Senior Unsecured Notes (the ""Notes'') totaling $150,000 through a
private placement. The Notes have original maturities ranging from Ñve to ten years with a weighted-average
interest rate of 6.1% and an average tenure of eight years. Interest is payable semi-annually in March and
September. The proceeds are being used for general corporate purposes, including acquisitions and to
purchase shares under the share repurchase program. The proceeds are generally invested in short-term,
highly liquid investments. The Notes contain certain aÇrmative and negative covenants, including restrictions
on asset dispositions and Ñnancial covenants (interest coverage and funded debt-to-""EBITDA'' ratios). As of
December 31, 2005, the Company was in compliance with all of its debt covenants.

During March 2002, the Company entered into Öoating rate interest rate swap agreements totaling $80,000, to
convert a portion of the outstanding Notes from Ñxed to Öoating rates. These swaps were designated as fair
value hedges, and as such, the gain or loss on the derivative instrument, as well as the oÅsetting gain or loss on
the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk were recognized in earnings. Net payments or receipts under
these agreements were recognized as adjustments to interest expense. In May 2003, these swap agreements
were terminated. The gain on the termination of these swaps was $10,613, and has been deferred and is being
amortized as an oÅset to interest expense over the remaining life of the instrument. The amortization of this
gain reduced interest expense by $2,117 in 2005 and is expected to reduce annual interest expense by $2,117 in
2006 and $1,121 in 2007. At December 31, 2005, $4,951 remains to be amortized and is included in Long-
term debt. The Ñnancing costs related to the $150,000 private placement are further reduced by the interest
income earned on the cash balances. These short-term, highly liquid investments earned approximately $1,985
during 2005.

During July 2003 and April 2004, the Company entered into various Öoating rate interest rate swap
agreements totaling $110,000, to convert a portion of the outstanding Notes from Ñxed to Öoating rates based
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NOTE G Ó SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

on the London Inter-Bank OÅered Rate (""LIBOR''), plus a spread of between 179.75 and 226.50 basis
points. The variable rates are reset every six months, at which time payment or receipt of interest will be
settled. These swaps are designated as fair value hedges, and as such, the gain or loss on the derivative
instrument, as well as the oÅsetting gain or loss on the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are
recognized in earnings. Net payments or receipts under these agreements are recognized as adjustments to
interest expense. The fair value of these swaps is included in Other long-term liabilities with a corresponding
decrease in Long-term debt. The fair value of these swaps at December 31, 2005 was $2,964.

Terminated swaps have increased the values of the Series A Notes from $40,000 to $41,328, the Series B
Notes from $30,000 to $32,354 and the Series C Notes from $80,000 to $81,269 as of December 31, 2005. The
weighted-average eÅective rate on the Notes for 2005 and 2004 was 3.95% and 3.07%, respectively.

Revolving Credit Agreement

On December 17, 2004, the Company entered into a new $175,000, Ñve-year revolving Credit Agreement.
This agreement replaced the Company's prior $125,000, three-year revolving credit facility entered into on
April 24, 2002. The new Credit Agreement may be used for general corporate purposes and may be increased,
subject to certain conditions, by an additional amount up to $75,000. The interest rate on borrowings under the
Credit Agreement is based on either LIBOR plus a spread based on the Company's leverage ratio or the prime
rate, at the Company's election. A quarterly facility fee is payable based upon the daily aggregate amount of
commitments and the Company's leverage ratio. The Credit Agreement contains customary aÇrmative and
negative covenants for credit facilities of this type, including limitations on the Company and its subsidiaries
with respect to indebtedness, liens, investments, distributions, mergers and acquisitions, dispositions of assets,
subordinated debt and transactions with aÇliates. As of December 31, 2005, there are no borrowings under the
Credit Agreement.

Capital Leases

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, $3,309 and $4,322 of capital lease indebtedness was secured by property,
plant and equipment, respectively. Other indebtedness secured by property, plant and equipment was $1,183
and $1,714 at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Other

Maturities of long-term debt, including payments under capital leases, for the Ñve years succeeding
December 31, 2005 are $1,020 in 2006, $40,902 in 2007, $873 in 2008, $30,760 in 2009, $633 in 2010 and
$82,698 thereafter. Total interest paid was $11,221 in 2005, $10,797 in 2004 and $10,983 in 2003. The
diÅerence in interest expense compared with interest paid represents the amortization of gain on settlement of
interest rate swaps realized in 2003.

Amounts reported as Amounts due banks represent short-term borrowings of the Company's foreign
subsidiaries.
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NOTE H Ó INCOME TAXES

The components of income before income taxes for the three years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
are as follows:

2005 2004 2003

U.S. $104,702 $ 63,064 $45,165

Non-U.S. 49,197 44,713 24,062

Total $153,899 $107,777 $69,227

Components of income tax expense (beneÑt) are as follows:

2005 2004 2003

Current:

Federal $21,978 $ 9,787 $(3,414)

Non-U.S. 8,828 6,004 3,867

State and local 2,682 1,917 (229)

33,488 17,708 224

Deferred:

Federal (708) 7,802 13,342

Non-U.S. (905) 2,021 357

State and local (282) (350) 762

(1,895) 9,473 14,461

Total $31,593 $27,181 $14,685

The diÅerences between total income tax expense and the amount computed by applying the statutory Federal
income tax rate to income before income taxes for the three years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
are as follows:

2005 2004 2003

Statutory rate of 35% applied to pre-tax income $53,865 $37,722 $24,230

EÅect of state and local income taxes, net of federal tax
beneÑt 1,461 895 613

Taxes (less than) the U.S. tax rate on non-U.S. earnings,
including utilization of tax loss carryforwards, losses with no
beneÑt and changes in non-U.S. valuation allowance (9,295) (7,624) (4,197)

U.S. tax beneÑt of foreign source income (1,537) (2,477) (3,833)

Settlement of prior year's tax liabilities (8,711) Ì Ì

Other Ó net (4,190) (1,335) (2,128)

Total $31,593 $27,181 $14,685

EÅective tax rate 20.5% 25.2% 21.2%

Total income tax payments, net of refunds, were $27,179 in 2005, $7,723 in 2004 and $311 in 2003.
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NOTE H Ó INCOME TAXES (continued)

SigniÑcant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2005 and 2004, are as follows:

2005 2004

Deferred tax assets:

Tax loss and credit carryforwards $17,734 $ 20,351

Other accruals 9,093 7,771

Employee beneÑts 10,493 9,396

Pension obligations 12,702 12,030

Other 19,065 19,587

69,087 69,135

Valuation allowance (17,278) (18,636)

51,809 50,499

Deferred tax liabilities:

Property, plant and equipment (46,536) (50,380)

Pension obligations (371) (999)

Other (13,585) (14,548)

(60,492) (65,927)

Total $(8,683) $(15,428)

At December 31, 2005, certain subsidiaries had tax loss carryforwards of approximately $50,642 that will
expire in various years from 2006 through 2019, except for $29,000 for which there is no expiration date.

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, the Company assesses whether it is more likely than not
that a portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The Company considers the scheduled
reversal of deferred tax liabilities, tax planning strategies, and projected future taxable income in making this
assessment. At December 31, 2005, a valuation allowance of $17,278 had been recorded against these deferred
tax assets based on this assessment. The Company believes it is more likely than not that the tax beneÑt of the
remaining net deferred tax assets will be realized. The amount of net deferred tax assets considered realizable
could be increased or reduced in the future if the Company's assessment of future taxable income or tax
planning strategies changes.

The Company is subject to taxation from U.S. federal, state, municipal and international jurisdictions. The
calculation of current income tax expense is based on the best information available and involves signiÑcant
management judgment. The actual income tax liability for each jurisdiction in any year can in some instances
be ultimately determined several years after the Ñnancial statements are published.

The Company maintains reserves for estimated income tax exposures for many jurisdictions. Exposures are
settled primarily through the settlement of audits within each individual tax jurisdiction or the closing of a
statute of limitation. Exposures can also be aÅected by changes in applicable tax law or other factors, which
may cause management to believe a revision of past estimates is appropriate. Management believes that an
appropriate liability has been established for income tax exposures; however, actual results may materially
diÅer from these estimates.

The Company does not provide deferred income taxes on unremitted earnings of certain non-U.S. subsidiaries
which are deemed permanently reinvested. It is not practicable to calculate the deferred taxes associated with
the remittance of these earnings.
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NOTE I Ó RETIREMENT ANNUITY AND GUARANTEED CONTINUOUS EMPLOYMENT
PLANS

The Company and its subsidiaries maintain a number of deÑned beneÑt and deÑned contribution plans to
provide retirement beneÑts for employees in the U.S., as well as employees outside the U.S. These plans are
maintained and contributions are made in accordance with the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of
1974 (""ERISA''), local statutory law or as determined by the Board of Directors. The plans generally provide
beneÑts based upon years of service and compensation. Pension plans are funded except for a domestic non-
qualiÑed pension plan for certain key employees and certain foreign plans. Substantially all U.S. employees are
covered under a 401(k) savings plan in which they may invest 1% or more of eligible compensation, limited to
maximum amounts as determined by the Internal Revenue Service. For most participants the plan provides
for Company matching contributions of 35% of the Ñrst 6% of employee compensation contributed to the plan.
The Company suspended the 35% matching provision from March 2003 until December 2003, reinstating the
matching provision eÅective January 1, 2004. The plan includes a feature in which participants hired after
November 1, 1997 will receive an annual Company contribution of 2% of their base pay. The plan allowed
employees hired before November 1, 1997, at their election, to receive this contribution in exchange for
forfeiting certain beneÑts under the pension plan. The Company uses a December 31 measurement date for its
plans.

The changes in the pension plans' beneÑt obligations were as follows:

2005 2004

Obligation at January 1 $634,968 $591,501
Service cost 17,710 16,039
Interest cost 36,443 35,114
Participant contributions 538 496
Plan amendments 3,249 2,865
Actuarial loss 41,933 22,635
BeneÑt payments (30,078) (39,713)
Settlements (9,538) 2,072
Currency translation (4,556) 3,959

Obligation at December 31 $690,669 $634,968
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NOTE I Ó RETIREMENT ANNUITY AND GUARANTEED CONTINUOUS EMPLOYMENT
PLANS (continued)

The changes in the fair values of the pension plans' assets were as follows:

2005 2004

Fair value of plan assets at January 1 $565,588 $500,268

Actual return on plan assets 46,744 56,108

Employer contributions 34,330 33,153

Participant contributions 538 496

BeneÑt payments (28,087) (27,494)

Settlements (10,334) Ì

Currency translation (3,796) 3,057

Fair value of plan assets at December 31 $604,983 $565,588

The funded status of the pension plans was as follows:

Funded status (plan assets less than beneÑt obligations) $(85,686) $(69,380)

Unrecognized net loss 170,535 139,177

Unrecognized prior service cost 5,390 5,169

Unrecognized transition assets, net Ì 15

Net amount recognized $ 90,239 $ 74,981

The minimum pension liability included in Accumulated other comprehensive loss increased $15,034 (net of
tax) in 2005 and increased $532 (net of tax) in 2004.

The projected beneÑt obligation, accumulated beneÑt obligation, and fair value of plan assets for the
U.S. pension plans with accumulated beneÑt obligations in excess of plan assets were $621,654 $579,403 and
$549,708, respectively, as of December 31, 2005 and $565,020, $531,954 and $510,445, respectively, as of
December 31, 2004. The projected beneÑt obligation, accumulated beneÑt obligation, and fair value of plan
assets for the non-U.S. pension plans with accumulated beneÑt obligations in excess of plan assets were
$43,705, $40,913 and $29,423, respectively, as of December 31, 2005 and $39,860, $37,515 and $25,573,
respectively, as of December 31, 2004. The total accumulated beneÑt obligation for all plans was $643,494 as
of December 31, 2005 and $597,865 as of December 31, 2004.
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NOTE I Ó RETIREMENT ANNUITY AND GUARANTEED CONTINUOUS EMPLOYMENT
PLANS (continued)

A summary of the components of total pension expense was as follows:

Year Ended December 31

2005 2004 2003

Service cost Ó beneÑts earned during the year $ 17,710 $ 16,039 $ 15,075

Interest cost on projected beneÑt obligation 36,443 35,114 34,989

Expected return on plan assets (47,155) (44,129) (33,506)

Amortization of transition assets 16 (35) (467)

Amortization of prior service cost 3,045 2,748 2,663

Amortization of net loss 8,955 8,511 8,963

Settlement losses 2,138 Ì Ì

Termination beneÑts 176 2,599 Ì

Net pension cost of deÑned beneÑt plans 21,328 20,847 27,717

Multi-employer plans 2,715 2,916 2,984

DeÑned contribution plans 4,292 4,921 1,802

Total net pension expense $ 28,335 $ 28,684 $ 32,503

The Company terminated one of its pension plans and incurred a settlement loss of $2,138 in the third quarter
of 2005.

The amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets were composed of:

Year Ended
December 31

2005 2004

Prepaid pension costs $ 1,956 $ 3,585

Accrued pension liability (43,448) (35,620)

Intangible asset 5,390 5,181

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 126,341 101,835

Net amount recognized in the balance sheets $ 90,239 $ 74,981

Weighted-average assumptions used to measure the beneÑt obligation for the Company's signiÑcant deÑned
beneÑt plans as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, were as follows:

2005 2004

Discount rate 5.6% 5.9%
Rate of increase in compensation 4.0% 4.0%

Weighted-average assumptions used to measure the net periodic beneÑt cost for the Company's signiÑcant
deÑned beneÑt plans as of December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 were as follows:

2005 2004 2003

Discount rate 5.9% 6.2% 6.7%
Rate of increase in compensation 4.0% 4.0% 4.9%
Expected return on plan assets 8.4% 8.6% 8.6%
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NOTE I Ó RETIREMENT ANNUITY AND GUARANTEED CONTINUOUS EMPLOYMENT
PLANS (continued)

To develop the discount rate assumption to be used, the Company refers to investment yields available at year-
end on long-term bonds rated Aa¿ or better. The Company also considers the yield derived from matching
projected pension payments with maturities of a portfolio of available non-callable bonds rated Aa¿ or better.
The expected long-term rate of return assumption is based on the weighted-average expected return of the
various asset classes in the plans' portfolio and the targeted allocation of plan assets. The asset class return is
developed using historical asset return performance as well as current market conditions such as inÖation,
interest rates and equity market performance. The rate of compensation increase is determined by the
Company based upon annual reviews.

Percentage of Weighted-Average
Plan Assets atTarget Expected
December 31,Allocation Long-Term

Asset Category 2006 2005 2004 Rate of Return

Equity securities 60% - 70% 66% 66% 9.7% - 10.4%
Debt securities 30% - 40% 34% 34% 4.7% - 6.5%

Total 100% 100% 100% 8.5%

The primary objective of the pension plans' investment policy is to ensure suÇcient assets are available to
provide beneÑt obligations when such obligations mature. Investment management practices must comply
with ERISA and all applicable regulations and rulings.

The overall investment strategy for the deÑned beneÑt pension plans' assets is to achieve a rate of return over a
normal business cycle relative to an acceptable level of risk that is consistent with the long-term objectives of
the portfolio.

Actual and expected employer contributions for the U.S. plans are as follows:

Employer Contributions

2006 (expected) $30,000
2005 $31,500
2004 $30,000

The actual amounts to be contributed to the pension plans in 2006 will be determined at the Company's
discretion.

Contributions by participants to certain non-U.S. plans were $538 and $496 for the years ended December 31,
2005 and 2004, respectively.

Expected future beneÑt payments for the U.S. plans are as follows: 2006 Ó $30,045, 2007 Ó $31,860, 2008 Ó
$32,855, 2009 Ó $34,577, 2010 Ó $35,554, 2011 through 2015 Ó $208,179.

The Company maintains a domestic unfunded supplemental executive retirement plan (SERP) under which
non-qualiÑed supplemental pension beneÑts are paid to certain employees in addition to amounts received
under the Company's qualiÑed retirement plan, which is subject to IRS limitations on covered compensation.
The annual cost of this program has been included in the determination of total net pension expense shown
above and was $2,318, $6,120 and $3,557 in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The projected beneÑt
obligation associated with this plan is also included in the pension disclosure shown above and was $18,254,
$13,943 and $22,392 at December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
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NOTE I Ó RETIREMENT ANNUITY AND GUARANTEED CONTINUOUS EMPLOYMENT
PLANS (continued)

The Company participates in multi-employer plans for several of its operations in Europe. Pension expense for
these plans is recognized as contributions are funded.

The Company does not have, and does not provide for, any postretirement or postemployment beneÑts other
than pensions.

The Cleveland, Ohio, area operations have a Guaranteed Continuous Employment Plan covering substantially
all employees which, in general, provides that the Company will provide work for at least 75% of every
standard work week (presently 40 hours). This plan does not guarantee employment when the Company's
ability to continue normal operations is seriously restricted by events beyond the control of the Company. The
Company has reserved the right to terminate this plan eÅective at the end of a calendar year by giving notice
of such termination not less than six months prior to the end of such year.

NOTE J Ó SEGMENT INFORMATION

EÅective April 1, 2004, the Company realigned its reporting segments to better reÖect how management
assesses and manages operations. The realignment consisted of moving the Company's Canadian operations
from the Other Countries segment and combining it with the businesses previously reported as the United
States segment to create the North America reporting segment. Prior period information has been reclassiÑed
to reÖect this realignment.

The Company's primary business is the design, manufacture and sale, in the U.S. and international markets, of
arc, cutting and other welding, brazing and soldering products. The Company manages its operations by
geographic location and has three reportable segments: North America, Europe and all Other Countries. The
Other Countries segment includes results of operations for the Company's businesses in Argentina, Australia,
Brazil, Colombia, Indonesia, Mexico, People's Republic of China, Taiwan and Venezuela. Each reporting
segment is managed separately because each faces a distinct economic environment, a diÅerent customer base
and a varying level of competition and market conditions. Segment performance and resource allocation is
measured based on income before interest and income taxes. The accounting policies of the reportable
segments are the same as those described in Note A Ó SigniÑcant Accounting Policies. Financial information
for the reportable segments follows:

North Other
America Europe Countries Eliminations Consolidated

For the year ended December 31, 2005:
Net sales to unaÇliated customers $1,056,134 $305,846 $239,210 $ Ì $1,601,190
Inter-segment sales 54,579 24,434 13,015 (92,028) Ì

Total $1,110,713 $330,280 $252,225 $(92,028) $1,601,190

Income before interest and income
taxes $ 117,224 $ 23,506 $ 16,964 $ 152 $ 157,846

Interest income 4,000
Interest expense (7,947)

Income before income taxes $ 153,899

Total assets $ 784,713 $254,644 $220,507 $(98,703) $1,161,161
Equity investments in aÇliates Ì 10,229 29,444 Ì 39,673
Capital expenditures 23,704 12,136 14,575 Ì 50,415
Depreciation and amortization 30,326 8,360 5,296 Ì 43,982
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North Other
America Europe Countries Eliminations Consolidated

For the year ended December 31, 2004:
Net sales to unaÇliated customers $ 875,422 $281,133 $177,120 $ Ì $1,333,675
Inter-segment sales 38,990 27,540 19,743 (86,273) Ì

Total $ 914,412 $308,673 $196,863 $(86,273) $1,333,675

Income before interest and income
taxes $ 72,469 $ 21,666 $ 16,690 $ 24 $ 110,849

Interest income 3,071
Interest expense (6,143)

Income before income taxes $ 107,777

Total assets $ 653,378 $276,262 $188,107 $(58,583) $1,059,164
Equity investments in aÇliates Ì 9,543 27,320 Ì 36,863
Capital expenditures 37,634 10,149 8,658 Ì 56,441
Depreciation and amortization 27,123 8,646 4,413 Ì 40,182

For the year ended December 31, 2003:
Net sales to unaÇliated customers $ 703,999 $226,560 $110,030 $ Ì $1,040,589
Inter-segment sales 26,805 19,195 14,137 (60,137) Ì

Total $ 730,804 $245,755 $124,167 $(60,137) $1,040,589

Income before interest and income
taxes $ 55,049 $ 11,191 $ 8,004 $ (80) $ 74,164

Interest income 3,187
Interest expense (8,124)

Income before income taxes $ 69,227

Total assets $ 623,755 $230,366 $119,082 $(44,337) $ 928,866
Equity investments in aÇliates Ì 7,861 26,390 Ì 34,251
Capital expenditures 25,611 5,712 3,517 Ì 34,840
Depreciation and amortization 26,815 7,446 3,477 (88) 37,650

In 2005, the Europe segment includes rationalization charges of $1,761 (pre-tax) (see Note F). In 2004, the
European segment includes rationalization charges of $2,440 (pre-tax) (see Note F). In 2003, the North
America segment includes rationalization charges of $540 (pre-tax) and the European segment includes
rationalization charges of $1,203 (pre-tax) (see Note F).

Inter-segment sales between reportable segments are recorded at cost plus an agreed upon intercompany
proÑt, which approximates an arm's length price, and are eliminated in consolidation. Export sales (excluding
intercompany sales) from North America were $115,712 in 2005, $89,767 in 2004 and $73,622 in 2003. No
individual customer comprised more than 10% of the Company's total revenues for any of the three years
ended December 31, 2005.
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NOTE J Ó SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The geographic split of the Company's net sales, based on country of origin, and property, plant and
equipment was as follows:

Year Ended December 31

2005 2004 2003

Net sales:
United States $ 829,497 $ 694,144 $ 552,362
Foreign countries 771,693 639,531 488,227

Total $1,601,190 $1,333,675 $1,040,589

Property, plant and equipment:
United States $ 184,434 $ 167,925 $ 163,086
Foreign countries 158,271 150,426 122,000
Eliminations (2,172) (2,235) (2,751)

Total $ 340,533 $ 316,116 $ 282,335

Net sales derived from customers and property, plant and equipment in any individual foreign country were
not material.

NOTE K Ó ACQUISITIONS

On April 29, 2005, the Company acquired all of the outstanding stock of J.W. Harris Co., Inc. (""J.W.
Harris''), a privately held brazing and soldering alloys manufacturer headquartered in Mason, Ohio for
approximately $71,000 in cash and $15,000 of assumed debt. The Company began consolidating the results of
J.W. Harris operations in the Company's consolidated Ñnancial statements in May 2005.

The purchase price allocation for this investment resulted in goodwill of $9,103. Included in the aggregate
purchase price is $4,160 deposited in escrow accounts. Distribution of amounts in escrow is dependent on
resolution of pre-closing contingencies. Amounts remaining in escrow as of the second anniversary of the
closing date will be distributed to the former shareholders and will result in adjustments to the purchase price
allocation.

The Company expects this acquisition to provide a strong complementary metals-joining technology and a
leading position in the brazing and soldering alloys market. Headquartered in Mason, Ohio, J.W. Harris has
approximately 300 employees and manufacturing plants in Ohio and Rhode Island. An international
distribution center is located in Spain. Annual sales are approximately $110,000. The J.W. Harris business
contributed sales of $75,546 and earnings of $0.04 per diluted share during the eight months ended
December 31, 2005.

In 2004, the Company invested approximately $12,000 into Shanghai Lincoln Electric (""SLE'') to acquire a
70% ownership interest and to fund the Company's Chinese expansion program. The Company began
consolidating the results of SLE's operations in the Company's consolidated Ñnancial statements in June 2004.
In November 2005, the Company invested an additional $5,500 into SLE increasing its ownership interest to
78%. SLE is a manufacturer of Öux-cored wire and other consumables located in China and will also
incorporate the Company's Chinese equipment manufacturing facilities. Equipment manufacturing com-
menced in the Ñrst quarter of 2006.

Also in 2004, the Company purchased 70% of the Rui Tai Welding and Metal Co. Ltd. for approximately
$10,000, net of cash acquired, plus debt assumed of approximately $2,000. Rui Tai subsequently changed its
name to Lincoln Electric Inner Mongolia (""LEIM''). The Company began consolidating the results of
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NOTE K Ó ACQUISITIONS (continued)

LEIM's operations in the Company's consolidated Ñnancial statements in July 2004. LEIM is a manufacturer
of stick electrodes located in northern China.

The purchase price allocation for these investments in China resulted in goodwill of approximately $11,000.

The Company expects, in the longer-term, these Chinese acquisitions, along with other planned investments in
China, will provide a strong equipment and consumable manufacturing base in China, improve the Company's
distribution network, and strengthen the Company's expanding market position in the Asia PaciÑc region.
These acquired businesses generated $36,338 of sales during the twelve months ended December 31, 2005
with no signiÑcant contribution to net income.

The Company continues to expand globally and periodically evaluates transactions that would involve
signiÑcant capital expenditures. If additional acquisitions and major projects providing appropriate Ñnancial
beneÑts become available, additional expenditures may be made.

NOTE L Ó FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company has various Ñnancial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, short-and long-term
debt and forward contracts. While these Ñnancial instruments are subject to concentrations of credit risk, the
Company has minimized this risk by entering into arrangements with major banks and Ñnancial institutions
and investing in several high-quality instruments. The Company does not expect any counterparties to fail to
meet their obligations. The Company has determined the estimated fair value of these Ñnancial instruments by
using available market information and appropriate valuation methodologies requiring judgment.

The carrying amounts and estimated fair value of the Company's signiÑcant Ñnancial instruments at
December 31, 2005 and 2004, were as follows:

December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amounts Value Amounts Value

Cash and cash equivalents $108,007 $108,007 $92,819 $92,819
Marketable securities Ì Ì 50,500 50,500
Amounts due banks 7,143 7,143 2,561 2,561
Long-term debt (including current portion) 158,873 160,284 164,813 163,854

Foreign Exchange Contracts: The Company enters into forward exchange contracts to hedge foreign
currency transactions on a continuing basis for periods consistent with its exposures. This hedging minimizes
the impact of foreign exchange rate movements on the Company's operating results. The notional amount of
outstanding foreign exchange contracts, translated at current exchange rates, was $48,847 and $63,351 at
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The Company would have paid $52 at December 31, 2005, and
$1,188 at December 31, 2004 to settle these contracts, representing the fair value of these agreements.

Interest Rate Swap Agreements: At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company had interest rate swap
agreements outstanding that eÅectively convert notional amounts of $110,000 of debt from Ñxed to Öoating
interest rates. The Company would have paid $2,964 and received $210 at December 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively, to settle these interest rate swap agreements, which represents the fair value of these agreements.
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NOTE M Ó OPERATING LEASES

The Company leases sales oÇces, warehouses and distribution centers, oÇce equipment and data processing
equipment. Such leases, some of which are noncancelable and, in many cases, include renewals, expire at
various dates. The Company pays most maintenance, insurance and taxes relating to leased assets. Rental
expense was $11,389 in 2005, $10,817 in 2004 and $11,147 in 2003.

At December 31, 2005, total future minimum lease payments for noncancelable operating leases are $5,998 in
2006, $4,578 in 2007, $3,527 in 2008, $2,141 in 2009, $873 in 2010 and $2,054 thereafter.

NOTE N Ó CONTINGENCIES

The Company, like other manufacturers, is subject from time to time to a variety of civil and administrative
proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. Such claims and litigation include, without limitation,
product liability claims and health, safety and environmental claims, some of which relate to cases alleging
asbestos and manganese induced illnesses. The Company believes it has meritorious defenses to these claims
and intends to contest such suits vigorously. Although defense costs have been increasing, all other costs
associated with these claims, including indemnity charges and settlements, have been immaterial to the
Company's consolidated Ñnancial statements. Based on the Company's historical experience in litigating these
claims, including a signiÑcant number of dismissals, summary judgments and defense verdicts in many cases
and immaterial settlement amounts, as well as the Company's current assessment of the underlying merits of
the claims and applicable insurance, the Company believes resolution of these claims and proceedings,
individually or in the aggregate (exclusive of defense costs), will not have a material adverse impact upon the
Company's consolidated Ñnancial statements.

The Company has provided a guarantee on a loan for a joint venture of approximately $4,000 at December 31,
2005 and 2004. The guarantee is provided on two loan agreements totaling $2,000 each, one which expires in
October 2006 and the other expiring in May 2007. Each loan has been undertaken for the purposes of funding
the joint venture's working capital needs. The Company would become liable for any unpaid principal and
accrued interest if the joint venture were to default on payment at the respective maturity dates. The Company
believes the likelihood is remote that material payment will be required under these arrangements because of
the current Ñnancial condition of the joint venture.

NOTE O Ó QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

2005 Mar 31 Jun 30 Sep 30 Dec 31

Net sales $362,903 $405,902 $412,013 $420,372
Gross proÑt 98,278 113,951 111,192 113,494
Income before income taxes 30,217 42,762 42,850 38,070
Net income 22,240 32,112 38,188 29,766
Basic earnings per share $ 0.53 $ 0.77 $ 0.91 $ 0.71
Diluted earnings per share $ 0.53 $ 0.77 $ 0.90 $ 0.70

2004 Mar 31 Jun 30 Sep 30 Dec 31

Net sales $306,511 $331,837 $344,333 $350,994
Gross proÑt 83,928 100,339 92,738 85,353
Income before income taxes 23,631 32,893 32,471 18,782
Net income 18,243 23,726 22,997 15,630
Basic earnings per share $ 0.45 $ 0.58 $ 0.56 $ 0.38
Diluted earnings per share $ 0.45 $ 0.57 $ 0.55 $ 0.37
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NOTE O Ó QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED) (continued)

The quarter ended March 31, 2005 includes a pre-tax charge of $1,250 ($848 after-tax) relating to the
Company's rationalization program (See Note F). The quarter ended June 30, 2005 includes a one-time state
income tax beneÑt of $1,807 (net of federal beneÑt) relating to changes in Ohio tax laws. The quarter ended
September 30, 2005 includes a favorable adjustment of $7,201 related to the resolution of prior years tax
liabilities and a pre-tax gain of $1,418 ($876 after-tax) on the settlement of legal disputes. The quarter ended
December 31, 2005 includes a net favorable tax beneÑt of $2,656 associated with the repatriation of foreign
earnings and the resolution of prior years' tax liabilities, oÅset by a $511 charge ($455 after tax) related to the
rationalization of the Company's Ireland manufacturing operations and a loss on the sale of a business of
$1,942 ($1,678 after tax).

The quarter ended December 31, 2004 includes a pre-tax charge of $2,440 ($2,061 after-tax) relating to the
Company's rationalization program (See Note F), and $4,525 ($2,828 after-tax) in pension settlement
provisions, accrued base pay, bonus, and stock compensation related to the retirement of the Company's past
Chairman and CEO.

The quarterly earnings per share (EPS) amounts are each calculated independently. Therefore, the sum of the
quarterly EPS amounts may not equal the annual totals.
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SCHEDULE II Ì VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(In thousands of dollars)

Additions

(1)
Charged to Balance

Balance at Charged to other at End
Beginning costs and accounts (2) of

Description of Period expenses (describe) Deductions Period

Allowance for doubtful accounts:
Year ended December 31, 2005 $9,295 $3,019 $(761) $3,970 $7,583
Year ended December 31, 2004 $8,101 $2,449 $ 517 $1,772 $9,295
Year ended December 31, 2003 $6,805 $1,584 $ 768 $1,056 $8,101

(1) Ó  Currency translation adjustment.

(2) Ó  Uncollectible accounts written-oÅ, net of recoveries.
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